
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020) came 
into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable councils to hold 
remote committee meetings during the Covid 19 pandemic 
period. This is to ensure local authorities can conduct business 
during this current public health emergency. 
 
This meeting of Audit Committee will be held remotely under 
these regulations, via the Zoom application and will be webcast 
to ensure accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
 

16 June 2020 
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 25 June 2020 at 6.30 pm. 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2020 
(previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 13  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  

Public Document Pack



 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - 2019/20 ASSURANCE OPINION (Pages 
5 - 26) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) which details the overall opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s control 
environment. 
 

8.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 27 - 40) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service asking Members to note the Annual 
Report. 
 

9.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) 2020/21 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
REPORT (Pages 41 - 58) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service on approval of the proposed Annual 
Audit Plan for 2020/21 (previously published as part of the 19 March 2020 agenda 
pack). 
 

10.   SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - 2020/21 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 
REPORT (Pages 59 - 72) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) which provides details on the 
progress made by SIAS in delivering the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2020/21 
as at 12 June 2020. 
 

11.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Pages 73 - 92) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive which presents the draft Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

12.   AUDIT RESULTS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2020 (Pages 
93 - 100) 
 

 Report of Ernst and Young LLP which provides an update on the status of the 
2019/20 Audit Plan, considers the known and potential impacts of Covid-19 at this 
stage on the audit and provides an update on the PSAA scale fees for the audit. 
 

13.   2019/20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (Pages 101 - 104) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
presenting the draft Statement of Accounts. 
 



14.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

15.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 12 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act as amended. 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

PART II 
 

16.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides (Chairman) 

S.Markiewicz (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
J.Boulton 
 

L.Chesterman 
F.Marsh 
J.Skoczylas 
 

    
 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Service on 01707357413 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

2019/20 Annual Assurance Statement 

and 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

25 June 2020 
 

Recommendations 
 
Members are recommended to: 
 
Note the Annual Assurance Statement and Internal 
Audit Annual Report  
 
Note the results of the self-assessment required by the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 
 
Accept the SIAS Audit Charter 2020/21 
 
Seek management assurance that the scope and 
resources for internal audit were not subject to 
inappropriate limitations in 2019/20 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 2 

 

Contents 
 
1.  Purpose and Background 
 1.1  Purpose 
 1.2  Background 
 
2. Annual Assurance Statement for 2019/20 

2.1 Scope of Responsibility 
2.2 Control Environment 
2.4 Review of Effectiveness - compliance with the 

PSIAS and QAIP 
2.11 Confirmation of independence of internal audit and 

assurance on limitations 
2.12 Assurance Opinion on Internal Control 
2.13 Assurance Opinion on Corporate Governance and 

Risk Management 
 

3. Overview of Internal Audit Activity at the Council in 
2019/20 

 
4. Performance of the Internal Audit Service in 2019/20 

4.1 Performance Indicators 
4.2 Service Developments 
 

5. Audit Charter 2020/21 
 
Appendices 
 
A  Final position against the Council’s 2019/20 Audit Plan 
 
B Definitions of Assurance Levels and Priority of 

Recommendations 
 
C Position against Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as 

at May 2020 
 
D Internal Audit Charter 2020/21 

Page 6



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 3 

 

1.  Purpose and Background 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report: 

 
• Details the Shared Internal Audit Service’s (SIAS) overall opinion on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s (the 
Council) control environment. Reference is made to significant matters and 
key themes. 

• Summarises the audit work that informs this opinion.  
• Shows the outcomes of the self-assessment against the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) incorporating the requirements of the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). 

• Shows SIAS’s performance in respect of delivering the Council’s audit 
plan.  

• Presents the 2020/21 Audit Charter. 
 
Background 
 

1.2 A key duty of the Head of Assurance is to provide an annual opinion on the 
Council’s internal control environment. This opinion informs the conclusions of 
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 
 

1.3 The assurance opinion in this report is based on 2019/20 internal audit work 
which was planned and amended to give sufficient assurance on the Council’s 
management of its key risks. 
 

1.4 SIAS is grateful for the co-operation and support it has received from client 
officers during 2019/20. 
 

2. Annual Assurance Statement 2019/20 
 
Context 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 

2.1 Council managers are responsible for ensuring Council business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively.  They are also responsible for ensuring internal controls are robust 
and risk management arrangements are appropriate. 
 
Control Environment 
 

2.2 The control environment comprises three key areas: internal control, 
governance, and risk management. Together these aim to manage risk to an 
acceptable level but not to eliminate it. 

Page 7



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 4 

 

2.3 A robust control environment helps ensure that the Council’s policies, 
priorities and objectives are achieved. 
 
Review of Effectiveness 
 

2.4 The Head of Assurance must confirm annually that the internal audit function 
is suitably qualified to carry out the work that informs the assurance opinion. 
 

2.5 As part of a QAIP, a self-assessment was conducted against the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS encompass the 
mandatory elements of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). They promote 
professionalism, quality, consistency and effectiveness of internal audit across 
the public sector. They highlight the importance of robust, independent and 
objective internal audit arrangements to provide senior management with the 
key assurances needed to support them in both managing the organisation 
and producing the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

2.6 The PSIAS also requires that the SIAS be subject to an external quality 
assessment at least once every five years. This should be conducted by a 
qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. The next external assessment was due in November 2020. 
Given the logistical challenges of facilitating an external assessment in the 
current environment, coupled with the reduction in robustness and value of a 
more remote review, the SIAS Board have approved a proposal to defer the 
external assessment from November 2020 to May 2021 at the latest. Such a 
decision is in line with guidance produced by the IIA, where external 
assessments can be deferred subject to the completion of a robust internal 
self-assessment, the outcomes of which are detailed below.  
 

2.7 The Head of Assurance has concluded, therefore, that SIAS ‘generally 
conforms’ to the PSIAS, including the Definitions of Internal Auditing, the 
Code of Ethics and the International Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing. ‘Generally conforms’ is the highest rating and means that 
SIAS has a charter, policies and processes assessed as conformant to the 
Standards and is consequently effective. 
 

2.8 The 2019/20 self-assessment identified 2 areas of agreed non-conformance.  
These are detailed in Appendix C. There are no significant deviations from 
Standards which warrant inclusion in the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

2.9 The SIAS QAIP includes both internal and external monitoring and reporting 
to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit activity and identify 
opportunities for improvement. The diagram below details the methods used 
to monitor and report on these. Detailed information outlining activity in each 
area is contained in the SIAS Audit Manual. 
 

Page 8



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 5 

 

2.10 The Head of Assurance confirms that during 2019/20 SIAS operated 
according to its QAIP with evidence available within the service to support the 
achievement of each QAIP element. 
 

 
 
 
Confirmation of independence of internal audit and assurance on limitations 
 

2.11 The Head of Assurance confirms that during the year: 
 
• No matters threatened SIAS’s independence, and 
• SIAS was not subject to any inappropriate scope or resource limitations. 
 
Annual Assurance Statement for 2019/20 

 
Assurance opinion on internal control 
 

2.12 Based on the internal audit work undertaken at the Council in 2019/20, SIAS 
can provide the following opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s control environment, broken down between financial and non-
financial systems. 

Page 9



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Assurance opinion on Corporate Governance and Risk Management 
 

2.13 SIAS has concluded that the corporate governance and risk management 
frameworks substantially comply with the CIPFA/SOLACE best practice 
guidance on corporate governance. This conclusion is based on the work 
undertaken by the Council and reported in its Annual Governance Statement 
for 2019/20 and although no specific review of Risk Management was 
completed this year, risk management is considered as part of annual audit 
planning and delivery of individual audit assignments.  
 

 
 
Chris Wood 
Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service  
May 2020 
 

Our overall opinion is Satisfactory 
Assurance - The internal control framework 
is largely working well in managing the key 
risks in scope, with some audit findings 
related to the current arrangements.   

 

ASSURANCE OPINION:  
NON-FINANCIAL 
SYSTEMS 

Our overall opinion is Satisfactory 
Assurance - The internal control framework 
is largely working well in managing the key 
risks in scope, with some audit findings 
related to the current arrangements.   

ASSURANCE OPINION:  
FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

Page 10



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 7 

 

3. Overview of Internal Audit Activity at the Council in 
2019/20 

 
3.1 This section summarises work undertaken at the Council by SIAS in 2019/20. 

It highlights any significant internal control matters and opportunities for 
improvement. 
 

3.2 Appendix A shows the final position against the agreed revised audit plan, 
assurance levels and the number of recommendations made. A summary of 
assurance levels and recommendations priority is shown in the tables below. 
 

Assurance Level Number of reports 
2019/20 

Percentage of reports 
2019/20 

Good 8 31% 
Satisfactory 12 46% 
Limited 0 0% 
No 0 0% 
Not Applicable 4 15% 
Not finalised 2 8% 
Total 26 100% 

 
Recommendation 
Priority Level 

Number of 
recommendations 

2019/20 

Percentage of 
recommendations made 

2019/20 
Critical 0 0% 
High 0 0% 
Medium 27 69% 
Low  12 31% 
Total 39 100% 

 
3.3 The satisfactory assurance opinion overall on financial systems has 

been concluded from the five financial systems audits finalised and where an 
opinion has been given. Two received good assurance and three satisfactory 
assurance. No high priority recommendations were made in these audits. 
 

3.4 The satisfactory assurance opinion overall on non-financial systems has 
been concluded from the 15 finalised audits where an opinion has been given. 
Six received good assurance and nine satisfactory assurance. No high priority 
recommendations were made in these audits. 
 
In arriving at our overall opinion for non-financial systems, we highlight that all 
opinions from final audit reports issued were good or satisfactory. This 
demonstrates that the Council has sound internal controls across a wide of 
range of key service areas.  

Page 11



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 8 

 

3.5 There are currently two audits at draft report stage (Agresso System and 
Homelessness Reduction Act). The outcomes from these audits have not 
been taken into account when determining the overall assurance opinion for 
the Council. Where an opinion is included, this will form part of the 2020/21 
Annual Assurance Opinion as they fall within this period. 
  

4. Performance of the Internal Audit Service in 
2019/20 

  
 Performance indicators 
 
4.1 The table below compares SIAS’s performance at the Council against the 

2019/20 targets set by the SIAS Board. 
 

Indicator Target 2019/20 Actual to 31 March 2020 

1 SIAS Planned Days – percentage 
of actual billable days delivered 
against planned billable days  
(excluding contingency)  

95% 100% 
(309 / 310) 

2 SIAS Planned Projects – actual 
completed projects to draft report 
stage against planned completed 
projects 

95% 100% 
(26 / 26 audit projects) 

3 SIAS Annual Plan – presented to 
the March Audit Committee or the first 
meeting of the financial year should a 
March committee not meet 

Deadline met Yes 

4 Client Satisfaction - client 
satisfaction questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory overall’ level (minimum of 
39/65 overall) 

100% 100% 
(15/24 returned) 

5 Head of Assurance’s Annual 
Report – presented at the first Audit 
Committee meeting of the financial 
year 

Deadline met Yes 

6 Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% N/A 

(None made in 2019/20) 
 
Service Developments 
 

4.2 During 2019/20 the development activities for SIAS included: 
 

• Staffing - the delivery of core learning and coaching for all members of 
staff. This included external training on the principles of risk and internal 
control, and the practical application of data analytics within audit testing 

Page 12



Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 

 
Page 9 

 

strategies. This will need to become embedded professional practice in 
2020/21 in order to add further value to internal audit work. A Team 
Charter has also been developed to set expectations for core values and 
behaviours amongst staff and to create a link to the IPPF and the PSIAS. 

 
• Practice - the template used for setting out the terms of reference for each 

audit assignment was revised and subsequently piloted at two SIAS 
partners. This received positive feedback from recipients and will now 
need to be rolled out during 2020/21. The revised template provides a 
means to explicitly link internal audit work to those things which prevent 
service objectives being met and to highlight alternative sources of 
assurance so that any audit duplication/overlap can be avoided where 
possible. 

 
• Technology – replacement computer hardware and software has been 

rolled out to all staff. This has facilitated more effective remote working, for 
example by using video conferencing and other communication tools. An 
automated Performance Dashboard has also been produced as a means 
of monitoring individual staff performance against targets. This tool has 
helped to inform one to one discussions and annual appraisals. A review 
of the SIAS web offering has also commenced. 

 
5. Audit Charter 2020/21 
 
5.1  The PSIAS require a local authority to formally adopt an Audit Charter which 

covers the authority and responsibility for an internal audit function.  
 
5.2 The SIAS Audit Charter sets out the framework within which it discharges its 

internal audit responsibilities to those charged with governance in the partner 
councils.  It details the permanent arrangements for internal audit and key 
governance roles and responsibilities to ensure the effectiveness of internal 
audit provision.   

 
5.3 The Audit Charter is reviewed annually. The review in May 2020 did not result 

in any material changes and the 2020/21 Charter is attached at Appendix D. 

Page 13



APPENDIX A – FINAL POSITION FOR THE 2019/20 AUDIT PLAN FOLLOWING APPROVED PLAN CHANGES 
 

 
Page 10 

 

2019/20 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS C H M L 
Key Financial Systems 
Agresso      16 15.5 Draft Report Issued 
Treasury Management Satisfactory 0 0 1 2 8 8 Final Report Issued 
Payroll Satisfactory 0 0 1 1 8 8 Final Report Issued 
NDR Good 0 0 0 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Council Tax Good 0 0 0 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Benefits  Satisfactory 0 0 1 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Corporate Audits 
Financial Resilience of Suppliers Satisfactory 0 0 2 0 15 15 Final Report Issued 
Data Quality of Performance 
Information Satisfactory 0 0 2 0 15 15 Final Report Issued 

Customer First Strategy Satisfactory 0 0 4 0 15 15 Final Report Issued 
Recruitment  Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 15 15 Final Report Issued 
Brexit Not assessed - - - - 7 7 Final Report Issued 
Operational Audits 
Freedom of Information Good 0 0 0 2 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Apprenticeship Levy Satisfactory 0 0 3 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Housing Rents Satisfactory 0 0 3 2 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Insurance Good 0 0 0 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Universal Credit Good 0 0 0 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Homelessness Reduction Act      10 9.5 Draft Report Issued 
Anti-Social Behaviour Satisfactory 0 0 4 0 10 10 Final Report Issued* 
Fire Safety Follow Up Not assessed - - - - 3 3 Final Report Issued 

P
age 14



APPENDIX A – FINAL POSITION FOR THE 2019/20 AUDIT PLAN FOLLOWING APPROVED PLAN CHANGES 
 

 
Page 11 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS C H M L 
DFG Grant Certification Not assessed 0 0 0 0 2 2 Final Report Issued 
Public Health 2018/19 Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Procurement / Contracts 
Street Scene Mobilisation Good 0 0 0 0 12 12 Final Report Issued 
Housing Maintenance Contract 
Procurement Good 0 0 0 0 6 6 Final Report Issued 

Counter Fraud 
No audits      0 0  
Corporate Governance and Risk Management 
No audits      0 0  
IT Audits 
GDPR Good 0 0 1 0 10 10 Final Report Issued 
Cyber Risks Satisfactory 0 0 1 3 12 12 Final Report Issued 
Consultancy 
Agresso Upgrade Not assessed - - - - 5 5 Final Report Issued 
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews 
Joint Reviews      2 2 Complete 
Shared Learning      3 3 Complete 
Contingency 
Contingency       0 0 As Required 
Strategic Support 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 18/19      3 3 Complete 
Audit Committee      8 8 Through Year 
Client Meetings      6 6 Through Year 
Liaison with External Audit      1 1 Through Year 

P
age 15



APPENDIX A – FINAL POSITION FOR THE 2019/20 AUDIT PLAN FOLLOWING APPROVED PLAN CHANGES 
 

 
Page 12 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS C H M L 
Progress Monitoring      8 8 Through Year 
SIAS Development      5 5 Through Year 
2020/21 Audit Planning      6 6 Through Year 
Follow up recommendations      6 6 Through Year 
2018/19 Projects requiring 
completion      3 3 Complete 

Total – Welwyn Hatfield B.C.   0 0 27 12 310 309  
 

* At Draft Report stage at 31 March 2020, Final Report issued after year end. 
 

Key to Assurance Level and Recommendation Priority Levels: 

N/A = Not Applicable 

C = Critical; H = High priority recommendations; M = Medium priority recommendations; L = Low priority recommendations    
 

P
age 16



APPENDIX B – DEFINITIONS OF ASSURANCE AND PRIORITY LEVELS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
Page 13 

 

Assurance Level Definition 

Good 
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key risks 
in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor reportable 
audit findings. 

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some audit 
findings related to the current arrangements.   

Limited 
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved. 

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention. 

    

Priority Level Definition 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Critical  
Red 

Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, 
i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to 
implement the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

High  
Amber 

Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if 
untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently. 

Medium  
Yellow 

Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put 
achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a 
timely manner. 

Low / Advisory  
Green 

Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will 
enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is 
practically possible. 

P
age 17



APPENDIX C - PROGRESS AGAINST PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS AT MAY 2020 – ACTION PLAN 
 

 
Page 14 

 

Section A: Conformance - During 2019/20 all areas apart from those identified in Section B below are conforming.  
 
Section B: Intentional Non-Conformance 
 

Ref Area of Non-Conformance with the 
Standard 

Commentary  

3.1a Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 
Does the board (defined as the Audit 
Committee) approve decisions relating to 
the appointment and removal of the Chief 
Audit Executive (CAE) (Head of 
Assurance)? 

 
 
The Director of Resources, Hertfordshire County 
Council (HCC), in consultation with the Board of 
the Shared Internal Audit Services approves 
decisions relating to the appointment and removal 
of the CAE. 
 
This is as provided for in the governance of the 
Shared Internal Audit Service. 

Non-conformance  
 
No further action proposed. 
The current arrangements are 
considered effective given the 
shared nature of SIAS.  

3.1c Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 
Does the chief executive or equivalent 
undertake, countersign, contribute 
feedback to or review the performance 
appraisal of the CAE? 
 

 
 
The performance appraisal is carried out by the 
Director of Resources (HCC). 
 

Non-conformance  
 
No further action proposed. 
The appraisal process was 
carried out by the Director of 
Resources (HCC) with input 
from all partner chief finance 
officers. The current 
arrangements are considered 
effective given the shared 
nature of SIAS.  

 

P
age 18



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 15 

 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

Audit Charter 2020/21 
 
1. Introduction and Purpose 
 
1.1. Internal auditing is an independent and objective assurance and consulting 

activity. It is guided by a philosophy of adding value to the operations of an 
organisation. It assists a council in achieving its objectives and ultimately 
provides assurance to the public by systematically evaluating and improving 
the effectiveness and efficiency of risk management, control and governance 
processes. 

 
2. Scope 
 
2.1. This Charter applies to all clients of Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS).  
 
3. Statutory Basis of Internal Audit 
 
3.1. Local government is statutorily required to have an internal audit function. The 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that ‘a relevant authority must 
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance’. 

 
3.2. In addition, a council’s Chief Finance Officer has a statutory duty under 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to establish a clear framework 
for the proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. To fulfil this 
requirement, the S151 officer relies, amongst other sources, upon the work of 
internal audit.  

 
4. Role 
 
4.1. SIAS internal audit activity is overseen by each client council’s committee 

charged with fulfilling audit committee responsibilities herewith referred to as 
the Audit Committee. As part of its oversight role, the Audit Committee is 
responsible for defining the responsibilities of SIAS via this Charter.   

 

Page 19



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 16 

 

4.2. SIAS may undertake additional consultancy activity requested by 
management. The Head of Assurance will determine such activity on a case 
by case basis assessing the skills and resources available.  Significant 
additional consultancy activity not already included in the Internal Audit Plan 
will only be accepted and carried out following consultation with the SIAS 
Board.  

 
5. Professionalism 
 
5.1. SIAS governs itself by adherence to the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS).  These standards include the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (IPPF). They set out the 
fundamental requirements for the professional practice of internal auditing and 
the evaluation of the effectiveness of an internal audit function’s performance.  
 

5.2. SIAS also recognise the Mission of Internal Audit as identified within the IPPF, 
‘To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and 
objective assurance, advice and insight’ and the Core Principles for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, which demonstrate an effective 
internal audit function, achieving internal audit’s mission. 
 

5.3. SIAS’s operations are guided by its operating procedures manual as well as 
applicable, Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) Position Papers, 
Practice Advisories and Guides, and relevant council policies and procedures, 
including compliance with the Bribery Act 2010.      

 
5.4. Should non-conformance with the PSIAS be identified, the Head of Assurance 

will investigate and disclose, in advance if possible, the exact nature of the 
non-conformance, the reasons for it and, if applicable, its impact on a specific 
engagement or engagement outcome.  

 
6. Authority and Confidentiality 
 
6.1. Internal auditors are authorised full, free, and unrestricted access to any and 

all of a client’s records, physical properties, and personnel as required to carry 
out an engagement. All client employees are requested to assist SIAS in 
fulfilling its roles and responsibilities. Information obtained during the course of 
an engagement is safeguarded and confidentiality respected.   

 
6.2. Internal auditors will only use information obtained to complete an 

engagement. It will not be used in a manner that would be contrary to the law, 
for personal gain, or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the 
client organisation(s). Internal auditors will disclose all material facts known 
which if not disclosed, could distort a report or conceal unlawful practice.  
 
 
 
 

Page 20



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 17 

 

7. Organisation 
 
7.1. The Head of Assurance and their representatives have free and unrestricted 

direct access to Senior Management, the Audit Committee, the Chief 
Executive, the Chair of the Audit Committee and the External Auditor.  The 
Head of Assurance will communicate with any and all of the above parties at 
both committee meetings and between meetings as appropriate. 
 

7.2. The Chairman of the Audit Committee has free and unrestricted direct access 
to both the Head of Internal Audit, and the Council’s External Auditor. 

 
7.3. The Head of Assurance is line managed by the Director of Resources at 

Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), who approves all decisions regarding the 
performance evaluation, appointment, or removal of the Head of Assurance, 
in consultation with the SIAS Board. Each partner’s Section 151 Officer is 
asked to contribute to the annual appraisal of the Head of Assurance. 

 
8. Stakeholders 

 
The following groups are defined as stakeholders of SIAS: 

 
8.1. The Head of Assurance and the Head of the Shared Internal Audit Service, 

both suitably experienced and qualified (CCAB and / or CMIIA), are 
responsible for: 
 
• hiring, appraising and developing SIAS staff in accordance with the host 

authority’s HR guidance 
• maintaining up-to-date job descriptions which reflect the roles, 

responsibilities, skills, qualifications, and attributes required of SIAS staff 
• ensuring that together, SIAS staff possess or obtain the skills, knowledge 

and competencies (including ethical practice) needed to effectively perform 
SIAS engagements 

 
8.2 The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of SIAS 

and holding the Head of Assurance to account for delivery.  This is achieved 
through the approval of the annual audit plan, approval of performance targets 
set by the SIAS Board and receipt of regular reports. 
 

8.3 The Audit Committee is also responsible for the effectiveness of the 
governance, risk and control environment within the Council, holding 
managers to account for delivery. The Audit Committee may also ensure that 
there is appropriate communication of, and liaison with internal audit matters 
as required from the wider publicly elected Member body. 
 

8.4 Senior Management, defined as the Head of Paid Service, Chief Officers and 
their direct reports, are responsible for helping shape the programme of 
assurance work. This is achieved through analysis and review of key risks to 
achieving the Council’s objectives and priorities. 
 

Page 21



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 18 

 

8.5 The SIAS Board is the governance group charged with monitoring and 
reviewing the overall operation of SIAS, including: 

  
• resourcing and financial performance 
• operational effectiveness through the monitoring performance indicators 
• the overall strategic direction of the shared service 

 
9. Independence and Objectivity 
 
9.1. No element in the organisation should interfere with audit selection, scope, 

procedures, frequency, timing, or report content.  This is necessary to ensure 
that internal audit maintains the necessary level of independence and 
objectivity. 

 
9.2. As well as being impartial and unbiased, internal auditors will have no direct 

operational responsibility or authority over any activity audited.  They will not 
implement internal controls, develop procedures, install systems, prepare 
records, or engage in any other activity that might impair their judgment. 
 

9.3. When asked to undertake any additional roles/responsibilities outside internal 
auditing, the Head of Assurance will highlight to the Audit Committee any 
potential or perceived impairment to independence and objectivity having 
regard to the principles contained within the PSIAS Code of Ethics as well as 
any relevant requirements set out in other professional bodies to which the 
CAE may belong. The Audit Committee will approve and periodically review 
any safeguards put in place to limit any impairments to independence and 
objectivity. 

 
9.4. The Head of Assurance will confirm to the Audit Committee, at least annually, 

the organisational independence of SIAS.  
 

10. Conflicts of Interest 
 
10.1. Internal auditors will exhibit clear professional objectivity when gathering, 

evaluating, and communicating engagement information. When forming 
judgments, they will make a balanced assessment of all relevant 
circumstances and not be influenced by their own interests or the views and 
interests of others. 

 
10.2. Each auditor will comply with the ethical requirements of his/her professional 

body and proactively declare any potential conflict of interest, whether actual 
or apparent, prior to the start of an engagement. 

 
10.3. All auditors sign an annual declaration of interest to ensure that the allocation 

of work avoids conflict of interest. Auditors who undertake consultancy work or 
are new to the team will be prohibited from auditing in those areas where they 
have worked in the past year. Audits are rotated within the team to avoid over-
familiarity and complacency.  

 

Page 22



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 19 

 

10.4. SIAS procures an arrangement with an external partner to provide additional 
internal audit days on request. The external partner will be used to deliver 
engagements as directed by the Head of Assurance in particular providing 
advice and assistance where SIAS staff lack the required skills or knowledge.  

 
10.5. In the event of a real or apparent impairment of independence or objectivity, 

(acceptance of gifts, hospitality, inducements or other benefits) the Head of 
Assurance will investigate and report on the matter to appropriate parties.  

 
11. Responsibility and Scope 
 
11.1. The scope of SIAS encompasses, but is not limited to, the examination and 

evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
governance, risk management, and internal control processes (as they relate 
to the organisation’s priorities and objectives) and the promotion of 
appropriate ethics and values.   

 
11.2. Internal control and risk management objectives considered by internal audit 

extend to the organisation’s entire control and risk management environment 
and include: 

 
• consistency of operations or programs with established objectives and 

goals, and effective performance 
• effectiveness and efficiency of governance, operations and employment 

of resources 
• compliance with significant policies, plans, procedures, laws, and 

regulations 
• design, reliability and integrity of management and financial information 

processes, including the means to identify, measure, classify, and report 
such information 

• safeguarding of assets 
 
11.3. SIAS is well placed to provide advice and support on emerging risks and 

controls and will, if requested, deliver consulting and advisory services or 
evaluate specific operations.  

 
11.4. SIAS is responsible for reporting to the Audit Committee and senior 

management, significant risk exposures (including those to fraud addressed in 
conjunction with the Shared Anti-Fraud Service), control and governance 
issues and other matters that emerge from an engagement.   

 
11.5. Engagements are allocated to (an) internal auditor(s) with the appropriate 

skills, experience and competence.  The auditor is then responsible for 
carrying out the work in accordance with the SIAS Operating Procedures 
Manual, and must consider the relevant elements of internal control, the 
needs and expectations of clients, the extent of work required to meet the 
engagement’s objectives, its cost effectiveness, and the probability of 
significant error or non-compliance.  

 

Page 23



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 20 

 

12. Role in Anti-Fraud 
 
12.1. The SIAS work programme, designed in consultation with Senior 

Management, the Audit Committee and, where applicable, the Shared Anti-
Fraud Service, seeks to help deter fraud and corruption.   

 
12.2. In conjunction with the Shared Anti-Fraud Service SIAS shares information 

with relevant partners to increase the likelihood of detecting fraudulent activity 
and reducing the risk of fraud to all. 

 
12.3. The Head of Assurance should be notified of all suspected or detected fraud, 

corruption or impropriety so that the impact upon control arrangements can be 
evaluated. 

 
13. Internal Audit Plan 
 
13.1. Following discussion with appropriate senior management, the Head of 

Assurance will submit a risk-based plan to the Audit Committee for review and 
approval.  This will occur at least annually.  The plan sets out the 
engagements agreed and demonstrates the priorities of both SIAS (the need 
to produce an annual internal audit opinion) and those of the organisation.  
Also included will be any relevant declarations of interest.  

 
13.2. The plan will be accompanied by details of the risk assessment approach 

used and will take into account the organisation’s assurance framework.  Also 
shown will be the timing of an engagement, its budget in days, details of any 
contingency for new or changed risks, time for planning and reporting and a 
contribution to the development of SIAS.   

 
13.3. The plan will be subject to regular review in year, and may be modified in 

response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, 
programmes, systems and controls.  All significant changes to the approved 
internal audit plan will be communicated in the quarterly update reports. 

 
14. Reporting and Monitoring 
 
14.1. A draft written Terms of Reference will be prepared and issued to appropriate 

personnel at the start of an engagement.  It will cover the intended objectives, 
scope and reporting mechanism and will be agreed with the client.  Changes 
to the terms of reference during the course of the engagement may occur and 
will be agreed following consultation with the client. 
 

14.2. A report will be issued on completion of an engagement.  It will include a 
reasoned opinion, details of the time period and scope within which it was 
prepared, management’s responses to specific risk prioritised findings and 
recommendations made and a timescale within which corrective action will be 
/ has been taken.  If recommended action is not to be taken, an explanation 
for this will also be included. 

 

Page 24



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 21 

 

14.3. SIAS will follow-up the implementation of agreed recommendations in line with 
the protocol at each client.  As appropriate, the outcomes of this work will be 
reported to the audit committee and may be used to inform the risk-based 
planning of future audit work. Should follow-up activity identify any significant 
error or omission, this will be communicated by the Head of Assurance to all 
relevant parties.  A revised internal audit opinion may be issued on the basis 
of follow-up activity. 

 
14.4. In consultation with senior management, the Head of Assurance will consider, 

on a risk-basis, any request made by external stakeholders for sight of an 
internal audit report.  

 
14.5. Quarterly update reports to the Audit Committee will detail the results of each 

engagement, including significant risk exposures and control issues.  In 
addition, an annual report will be produced giving an opinion on the overall 
control, governance, and risk management environment (and any other issues 
judged relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement), with 
a summary of the work that supports the opinion.  The Head of Assurance will 
also make a statement of conformance with PSIAS, and detail the nature and 
reasons for any impairments, qualifications or restrictions in scope for which 
the Committee should seek reassurances from management.  

 
15. Periodic Assessment 
 
15.1. PSIAS require the Head of Assurance and the SIAS Board to make 

arrangements for an independent review of the effectiveness of internal audit 
undertaken by a suitably knowledgeable, qualified and competent individual or 
organisation. This should occur at least every five years. 

 
15.2. The Head of Assurance will ensure that continuous efforts are made to 

improve the efficiency, effectiveness, and quality of SIAS. These will include 
the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme, client feedback, 
appraisals and shared learning with the external audit partner as well as 
coaching, supervision, and documented review.  

 
15.3. A single review will be carried out to provide assurance to all SIAS partners 

with the outcomes included in the partner’s Annual Report.  
 
16. Review of the Audit Charter 
 
16.1. The Head of Assurance will review this charter annually and will present, to 

the first audit committee meeting of each financial year, any changes for 
approval.  

 
16.2. The Head of Assurance reviewed this Audit Charter in May 2020. It will next 

be reviewed in April 2021.  
 
 
 

Page 25



APPENDIX D – AUDIT CHARTER 2020/21 
 

 
Page 22 

 

Glossary of Terms 
 

Audit Committee 

The governance group charged with independent 
assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
framework, the internal control environment and the 
integrity of financial reporting. 
 

Management 

Operational officers of the Council responsible for 
creating corporate policy and organising, planning, 
controlling, and directing resources in order to 
achieve the objectives of that policy. Senior 
management is defined as the Head of Paid 
Service, Chief Officers and their direct reports. 

The SIAS Board 
The Board that comprises officer representatives 
from the client authorities and that is responsible for 
the governance of the SIAS partnership 

The Audit Plan 
The programme of risk based work carried out by 
the Shared Internal Audit Service on behalf of its 
clients 

The Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 

These standards, which are based on the 
mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices 
Framework (IPPF), are intended to promote further 
improvement in the professionalism, quality, 
consistency and effectiveness of internal audit 
across the public sector. They reaffirm the 
importance of robust, independent and objective 
internal audit arrangements to provide stakeholders 
with the key assurances they need to support them 
both in managing and overseeing the organisation 
and in producing the annual governance statement. 

Note: 
For readability, the term ‘internal audit activity’ as used in the PSIAS guidance has been replaced with 
‘SIAS’ in this Charter. 
 

Page 26



Annual Report 2019/20

Shared Internal  
Audit Service

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



Annual Report Contents

Introduction & Highlights 1

Levels of Delivery 2

Shared learning – The Power of Partnership 3

Developing Our People and Processes 4

First Class Customer Service 5

Performance - Outcomes 6

Performance Indicators and Financial Performance of SIAS 7

Future Developments 8

Our Board Members 9

Appendix A:  SIAS Trading Account 10

Appendix B:  Definitions 11

Page 28



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 1

Introduction 
Welcome to the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Annual Report 
for 2019/20.  
  
As I write, we are experiencing a gradual easing of lockdown, isolation and 
restricted movement as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Many of us have 
been charting a course through the unfamiliar waters of home working, while 
simultaneously managing family demands and caring responsibilities. For me, it 
has been trying to strike the right balance between the priorities of the workplace 
with home schooling duties, most recently finding myself immersed in the world of 
fractions, grammar and punctuation and a project on trees. 

We have been through a period of rapid and unexpected change that has 
challenged our wellbeing and left many exhausted, fatigued and anxious. We would all do well 
to reach into our reserves of empathy and patience, listen to one another and recognise that 
mistakes may be made. I am in awe though of the courage, resilience and sheer energy of 
friends and colleagues, who have achieved so much so quickly transforming services, throwing 
themselves into the fray and raising the spirits of others. 

I am proud that SIAS did not stand on the side lines, but that several members of the team 
volunteered for redeployment opportunities at some of our partners and got involved with 
the Covid-19 response. It is fascinating to hear from them about their new experiences, skills 
developed, and confidence acquired on the frontline. It is equally gratifying to hear the sincere 
praise for their efforts which has brought credit to themselves and made them great ambassadors 
for SIAS.  

It has been a year of promotions and departures. On the one hand, I am thrilled that Darren 
Williams has been appointed to the Head of SIAS role as of 1 April 2020 and saddened to see my 
friend and mentor, Terry Barnett, head off into a much-deserved retirement. Covid-19 reared its 
head here too, as it denied everybody the opportunity to say their farewells, and I found myself 
having a somewhat surreal and unusual start to my tenure as Head of Assurance. This is certainly 
not what was planned for during my handover, but in its own way, it has been fascinating and 
brimming with opportunity for SIAS as it looks to recovery phase planning and the rapidly unfolding 
future of assurance provision. 

The events of March 2020 seemed to overshadow all that preceded it, but for further highlights 
and reflections, I invite you to delve into the Annual Report itself. As ever, I enjoy the engagement, 
dialogue and feedback the report fosters.

Chris Wood
Head of Assurance

June 2020

Page 29



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/2022

Levels of Delivery
The Service faced some challenges during the year arising 
from staff sickness absences and vacancies. The impact of 
COVID-19 was keenly felt in March 2020 and posed significant 
audit delivery challenges at a key time in the year when our 
partners were rapidly refocusing on the COVID-19 response.

The Figures below indicate the outturn for our performance objectives 
against the original audit plans, as well as revisions in performance that 
account for the impact of audits unable to commence or complete. 

That we managed to do as well as we did in the end on our overall 
objectives, is testament to the hard work and resilience of the SIAS Team.

Figure 1: Percentage of audits days delivered 

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 

Page 2 

Levels of Delivery 
 
The Service faced some challenges during the year arising from staff sickness 
absences and vacancies. The impact of COVID-19 was keenly felt in March 2020 
and posed significant audit delivery challenges at a key time in the year when our 
partners were rapidly refocusing on the COVID-19 response.  
 
The Figures below indicate the outturn for our performance objectives against the 
original audit plans, as well as revisions in performance that account for the 
impact of audits unable to commence or complete. 
 
That we managed to do as well as we did in the end on our overall objectives, is 
testament to the hard work and resilience of the SIAS Team.  

Figure 1: Percentage of audits days delivered 

 

 

Figure 2: Percentage of audits to draft stage 

 
 

 

 

 

The impact 
of COVID-19 
was keenly 
felt in March 
2020 and 
posed 
significant 
audit 
delivery 
challenges… 

Figure 2: Percentage of audits to draft stage 

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 

Page 2 

Levels of Delivery 
 
The Service faced some challenges during the year arising from staff sickness 
absences and vacancies. The impact of COVID-19 was keenly felt in March 2020 
and posed significant audit delivery challenges at a key time in the year when our 
partners were rapidly refocusing on the COVID-19 response.  
 
The Figures below indicate the outturn for our performance objectives against the 
original audit plans, as well as revisions in performance that account for the 
impact of audits unable to commence or complete. 
 
That we managed to do as well as we did in the end on our overall objectives, is 
testament to the hard work and resilience of the SIAS Team.  

Figure 1: Percentage of audits days delivered 

 

 

Figure 2: Percentage of audits to draft stage 

 
 

 

 

 

The impact 
of COVID-19 
was keenly 
felt in March 
2020 and 
posed 
significant 
audit 
delivery 
challenges… 

The impact of 
COVID-19 was 
keenly felt in 

March 2020 and 
posed significant 

audit delivery 
challenges…

Page 30



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 3

Shared learning happens through the 
dialogue we have with others. It has long 
been part of the vision of our Board that 
the service acts to facilitate the sharing 
of learning across its partners. A shared 
learning culture, both formal and informal, 
is embedded through our team, our sister 
services within Assurance and across our 
partners and opportunities abound to promote issues big and small. 

Shared learning - The Power of Partnership

During 2019/20, our quarterly shared learning papers continued to be a feature at management 
boards and governance groups across our partners. General learning points arising from our 
work and the wider local government environment have been disseminated with 
contributions from across our Assurance Services. A key theme arising from our 
internal audit work as the Covid-19 pandemic developed in March 2020 was 
the importance of focusing on the basics of decision making, record keeping 
and sound governance in a rapidly evolving environment requiring an urgent 
response. This would ensure that our partners’ Covid-19 response was able 
to respond to any challenge and scrutiny, especially if there was a worst-
case scenario involving a breach of duty of care or gross negligence that had 
significant legal, reputational or financial implications.

In addition to our shared learning papers and newsletters, we normally host a very well received 
follow-up workshop for our partners and other stakeholders. This year, we scoped a workshop 
on Artificial Intelligence, Machine Learning and Robotic Process Automation and the future of 
local government, however this was deferred as most partners are in the very early stages of 
development and the learning to be achieved had not sufficiently progressed.

We have used our governance expertise to develop internal audit recommendation databases, 
update Audit Committee Terms of Reference and facilitate the Annual Governance Statement 
process for our partners. Joint internal audit reviews across relevant partners also took place on 
the Hertfordshire Building Control Service and Shared Anti-Fraud Service.

Our involvement with ‘Audit Together’, a strategic alliance of similar internal audit partnerships,  
our audit delivery partners (BDO) and an array of contacts through bodies such as the Local 
Authority Chief Auditors Network (LACAN) and Home Counties Chief Internal Auditors Group 
(HCCIAG) have been invaluable in sharing experiences, points of practice and ideas that help us 
to develop as a service in response to client need and the ever-evolving field of internal audit.  
This was particularly notable as the Covid-19 pandemic unfolded.

Delegates from SIAS have also attended the annual Internal Audit Conference of the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors (Chartered IIA), which has proved a valuable learning and networking 
opportunity, while helping our team connect to their profession.

Our staff, partners and Audit Committee members continue to provide helpful challenge, which 
causes us to pause and think about matters big and small, whether about assurance levels, 
recommendation priorities, professional judgement and intellectual curiosity or about our skills, 
performance, systems and culture.

Shared learning 
happens through 

the dialogue 
we have with 

others…

Page 31



4

Developing our People and Processes
SIAS is committed to providing an exemplar service to 
its partners and clients that successfully blends cost 
effectiveness, resilience and quality. 

At the core of our service are 
our team members, and we 
have invested in the delivery 
of core learning and coaching 
for all members of staff. This 
included external refresher 
training on the principles of 
risk and internal control, and 
the practical application of 
data analytics using simple 
and advanced Excel techniques within audit testing strategies. This will 
need to become embedded professional practice in 2020/21 in order to 
add further value to internal audit work. A Team Charter has also been 
developed to set expectations for core values and behaviours amongst staff 
and to create a link to the International Professional Practices Framework 
and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

We have conducted a review of our internal audit practices, with an outcome 
that our template used for setting out the terms of reference for each audit 
assignment was revised and subsequently piloted at two SIAS partners. 
This received positive feedback from recipients and will now be rolled out 
during 2020/21. The revised template provides a means to explicitly link 
internal audit work to those risks which prevent service objectives being 
met and to highlight alternative sources of assurance so that any audit 
duplication/overlap can be avoided where possible. The revised template 
has also improved integration with our audit working papers. 

Technology is a key enabler of modern smart and agile working, as has 
been demonstrated by the Covid-19 pandemic. The replacement and 
update of laptops and applications could not have been better timed, 
and we have been well placed to support service delivery through new 
collaboration and communication tools. An automated Performance 
Dashboard has also been implemented as a means of monitoring individual 
staff performance against targets. This tool has helped to inform one to one 
discussions and annual appraisals. A review of the SIAS web offering has 
also commenced. 

We also commenced the process of reviewing and updating our Internal 
Audit Manual. This is a comprehensive set of working documents designed 
to inform, direct, guide and train internal auditors within the team, and 
includes things such as our vision, structure charts, policies, audit 
methodology, quality control arrangements and working paper and  
report templates.  

Invested in the 
delivery of core 

learning and 
coaching for all 
team members 

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20

Well placed 
with technology 

upgrades to 
support service 

delivery through 
new collaboration 

and communication 
tools  

Page 32



5

First Class Customer Service
In order to monitor our effectiveness and improve  
our service, at the end of each assignment we  
request the completion of a short satisfaction survey. 
We have been given and have acted upon invaluable 
improvement ideas, and we are proud of the fact that 
in 2019/20 we have received 100% satisfactory or 
higher feedback rating from our customers. This is an 
improvement on the previous year. 

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20

Some of the comments that accompany the formal 
scoring document are shown below: 

“  All very easy to follow, contacts and meeting were at times 
of my choosing. No complaints.”

“ The purposed and the process of the audit was made very 
clear.  The auditor took time to understand the contract 
and how we are delivering the programme as a whole 
before looking into the financial aspect of the programme. 
The auditor also made it very clear what information was 
required to be able to carry out the audit in order for me to 
identify the most appropriate documents to support  
the process.”

“ The auditor understood the need for business continuity 
planning but balanced against the ‘appetite’ at the council. 
The scope and recommendations reflected this perfectly.”

“ The Debtors audit was conducted in an efficient manner 
with minimum disruption to the service. Requests for 
information before the office visit meant we were able to 
gather it at a time convenient to ourselves thus reducing 
service disruption. It helped that the auditor had the 
knowledge of what a Debtors system is and how it works in 
principle.”

“ We felt the service was very useful and helped us highlight 
areas of improvement.”

“ Good audit that was carried out with very little client input 
as promised. Results seem to be very thorough and gave us 
actions to work on.”

“ A useful and productive exercise which hopefully will lead to 
improved outcomes.”

h
el

p
fu

l

st
u

d
en

t-
ce

n
tr

ed

co
lla

b
o

ra
te

eq
u

ita
b

lereliable

respectful
discuss options

identify solutionssupport

b
u

sy

accessible w
el

co
m

in
g

fr
ie

n
d

ly

respectful

pride
procedure

hands-on

em
p

at
h

et
ic

co
u

rt
io

u
s

at
te

n
tiv

e

knowledgeable

communication

p
o

lic
y

smile

approachable

fo
llo

w
 th

ro
u

g
h

determine needs

ch
ee

rf
u

l

dependable
inclusive

service
excellence

“We felt the 
service was very 

useful and helped 
us highlight areas 
of improvement.” 

Page 33



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/2066

Performance - Outcomes 
SIAS completed 196 assurance and other projects to 
final report stage, giving the assurance opinions and 
recommendations detailed in the charts below. 
  
For those pieces which resulted in a formal assurance opinion,  
the distribution of opinions is set out in figure 3 below:  

Figure 3:  Distribution of Audit Opinions 2019/20 

Not  
Assessed 

20

Satisfactory 
106Good 

58

Limited 
12

For those audits where recommendations were required,  
the priority ratings are set out in figure 4 below: 

Figure 4: Prioritisation of Recommendations 2019/20

High 
30

Medium 
324

Low 
201

196 assurance 
and other projects 

identifying 555 
recommendations 

Page 34



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 7

Performance Indicators 
The overall business performance of SIAS is monitored by the 
SIAS Board by means of a balanced scorecard which provides 
a range of measures by which progress can be evaluated. 

The overall performance of SIAS against our key performance indicators is 
reported below. 

Table 1: SIAS Business Performance

Financial Performance of SIAS 
SIAS began operating on a fully traded basis in 2012/13. 

Appendix A sets out the summary financial position at 31 March 2020.  
The partners determined that the service should aim to build a reasonable 
surplus and to consider the financial position of the service on a three-year 
rolling basis.   

The intention of this is to smooth the impact of any unforeseen events 
impacting on trading performance in future years. 

Indicator Target
Actual as at  

31 March 
2019

Actual as at  
31 March 

2020
Commentary 

Progress against 
plan: actual days 
delivered as a 
percentage of 
planned days.

95% 96% 94% (97%)

The impact of 
COVID-19 was keenly 
felt in March 2020 and 
posed significant audit 
delivery challenges at 
a key time in the year 
when our partners were 
rapidly refocusing on the 
COVID-19 response.  
Figures in brackets 
represent revisions to 
account for the impact 
of audits unable to 
commence or complete. 

Progress against 
plan: audits 
issued in draft by 
31 March 

95% 95% 89% (93%) 

Client 
satisfaction 

100% client 
satisfaction 
questionnaires 
returned at 
‘satisfactory 
overall’ level  
or above 

97% 100% Continued good  
performance in this area

Page 35



8

Future Developments

The intervention of the Covid-19 pandemic has naturally 
posed some challenges to overcome, not least the health and 
wellbeing of the team, caring responsibilities, redeployment of 
some team members to frontline roles at our partners and the 
commencement of 2020/21 internal audit plans whether  
as originally envisaged or revised as part of Covid-19 
assurance provision. 

A key part of the upcoming year will be responding to the impact of Covid-19 
on the team and audit delivery, with recovery phase planning being central 
to the 2020/21 Service Plan.

While reshaping our planned activity for the year, SIAS are also cognisant of 
the unique opportunity to reimagine the service, its ways of working and the 
value proposition it offers. 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require SIAS to have 
an external quality assessment (EQA) at least once every five years by 
a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. The next external assessment is due in November 2020. 
While the SIAS Board has agreed a deferral of the EQA to May 2021 at the 
latest, taking account of Chartered IIA guidance, the service will use the 
deferral to ensure it will be in good shape for the EQA when it comes around 
and completing the annual self-assessment of compliance with the PSIAS 
(using the Chartered IIA’s checklist) as normal to develop a plan to address 
any gaps identified. 

The service has also been reviewing income generation with the SIAS 
Board and will continue to explore opportunities that complement existing 
SIAS skillsets and experience. SIAS are working closely with a number 
of academies and have developed an academy offering that continues to 
attract new clients for the coming year. 

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20
Page 36



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 9

Our Board Members
The SIAS Board provides strategic direction and oversight 
for the partnership, bringing a wealth of local government 
experience and insight to our operation.

In 2019/20, our Board members were as follows:  

Name Title Partner

Clare Fletcher Strategic Director (S151) Stevenage Borough Council

Matthew Bunyon Head of Finance and Business Services Hertsmere Borough Council

Steven Pilsworth Assistant Director Finance Hertfordshire County Council

Ian Couper Service Director (Resources) North Hertfordshire District 
Council

Ka Ng Corporate Director  (Resources,  
Environment and Cultural Services) 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough  
Council

Bob Palmer Interim Head of Strategic Finance  
and Property East Herts Council

Alison Scott Interim Director of Finance Watford Borough Council and 
Three Rivers District Council

Terry Barnett Head of Assurance SIAS

Page 37



10

Budget Outturn
£ £

Salaries & Salary Related 1,092,885 1,002,069

Partner / Consultancy Costs 112,320 194,887

Transport 7,500 6,788

Supplies 18,483 9,968

Office Accommodation Cost 17,005 17,005

Total expenditure 1,248,198 1,230,717

Income -1,230,926 -1,245,127

Net (surplus) / deficit 17,267 (14,410)

Appendix A - SIAS cost centre:  
revised budget against outturn 2019/20

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20
Page 38



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/20 11

Appendix B - Definitions of Assurance 
Levels and Priority of Recommendations

Assurance 
Level Definition

Good
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, 
thereby ensuring that the key risks in scope are being well managed and core 
objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor reportable audit findings. 

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks 
in scope, with some audit findings related to the current arrangements.   

Limited

The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit 
findings in key areas. Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control 
environment is necessary to gain assurance risks are being managed to an 
acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved. 

No
The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective 
in managing the key risks in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will 
be met without urgent management intervention. 

Priority Level Definition

C
or

po
ra

te

Critical

Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to 
the organisation as a whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and / 
or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement the 
appropriate controls is required immediately.

Se
rv

ic
e

High

Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control 
environment, which, if untreated by management intervention, is highly 
likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial 
action is required urgently.

Medium
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, 
are likely to put achievement of some of the core service objectives at 
risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner. 

Low /  
Advisory

Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, 
which, if adopted, will enhance the control environment. The appropriate 
solution should be implemented as soon as is practically possible. 

Page 39



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2019/201212
Page 40



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Audit Committee  

 
2020/21 Internal Audit Plan Report 

 
19 March 2020 

 
 
 

Recommendation 
 

Members are recommended to approve the 
proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council  

Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



Page 1 

Contents 
 
1. Introduction and Background 

1.1  Purpose 
1.2  Background 

 
2. Audit Planning Process 

2.1 Planning Principles 
2.2 Approach to Planning 
2.4 Planning Context 
2.7 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

 
3. Performance Management 

3.1 Update Reporting 
3.3 Performance Indicators 

 
 
Appendices 
 

A Proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan 
2020/21 

 
B Proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan 

2020/21– Reserve List 
 
C Audit Start Dates Agreed with Management 
 
 

Page 42



Page 2 

1. Introduction and Background 
 

Purpose of Report 
 

1.1  To provide Members with the proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council (the Council) 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
Background 
 

1.2 The Council’s Internal Audit Plan sets out the programme of internal 
audit work for the year ahead, and forms part of the Council’s wider 
assurance framework. It supports the requirement to produce an audit 
opinion on the overall internal control environment of the Council, as 
well as a judgement on the robustness of risk management and 
governance arrangements, contained in the Head of Internal Audit 
annual report. 

 
1.3 The Shared Internal Audit Service’s (SIAS) Audit Charter which was 

presented to the June 2019 meeting of this Committee shows how the 
Council and SIAS work together to provide a modern and effective 
internal audit service. This approach complies with the requirements of 
the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
which came into effect on 1 April 2013 and revised on 1 April 2018. An 
updated version of the SIAS Audit Charter will be brought to the June 
2019 Audit Committee meeting for Member approval. 
 

1.4 The PSIAS require that the audit plan incorporates or is linked to a 
strategic or high-level statement which: 
 
• Outlines how the service will be developed in accordance with the 

internal audit charter 
• Details how the internal audit plan will be delivered 
• Evidences how the service links to organisational objectives and 

priorities 
 
1.5 Section 2 of this report details how SIAS complies with this 

requirement. 
 
 

2. Audit Planning Process 
 
 Planning Principles 
 
2.1 SIAS audit planning is underpinned by the following principles: 
 

a) Focus of assurance effort on the Council’s key issues, obligations, 
outcomes and objectives, critical business processes and projects 
and principal risks. This approach ensures coverage of both 
strategic and key operational issues. 

Page 43



Page 3 

 
b) Maintenance of an up-to-date awareness of the impact of the 

external and internal environment on the Council’s control 
arrangements. 

 
c) Use of a risk assessment methodology to determine priorities for 

audit coverage based, as Audit as possible, on management’s view 
of risk. 

 
d) Dialogue and consultation with key stakeholders to ensure an 

appropriate balance of assurance needs. This approach includes 
recognition that in a resource-constrained environment, all needs 
cannot be met. 

 
e) Identification of responsibilities where services are delivered in 

partnership. 
 
f) In-built flexibility to ensure that new risks and issues are 

accommodated as they emerge. 
 
g) Capacity to deliver key commitments including governance work. 
 
h) Capacity to respond to management requests for assistance with 

special investigations, consultancy and other forms of advice. 
 

Approach to Planning 
 
2.2 In order to comply with the requirements of the PSIAS, SIAS applies a 

methodology at all its partners which contains the following elements: 
 
Local and National Horizon Scanning 
 
SIAS reviews, on an ongoing basis: 
a) Key committee reports at each client and identifies emerging risks 

and issues. 
b) The professional and national press, as well as thought leadership 

for risks and issues emerging at national level. 
 

Consideration of risk management arrangements 
 
SIAS assesses the risk maturity of the Council and based on this 
assessment, determines the extent to which information contained 
within the Council’s risk register informs the identification of potential 
audit areas. 
 
Confirmation of the council’s objectives and priorities 
 
SIAS confirms the current objectives and priorities of the Council. This 
information is used to confirm that identified auditable areas will provide 

Page 44



Page 4 

assurance on areas directly linked to the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives and priorities. 
 

2.3 The approach to audit planning for 2020/21 has been characterised by: 
 

a) Detailed discussions with senior managers and other key officers 
within the Council to confirm auditable areas and elicit high level 
detail of the scope of audits.  This process incorporates the 
following four steps to assist in the later prioritisation of projects: 

 
Risk Assessment 
Managers and SIAS agree the level of risk associated with an 
identified auditable area  
 
Other sources of Assurance 
Managers are asked whether assurance in the auditable area is 
obtained from other assurance providers e.g. External Audit or the 
Health and Safety Executive.  This approach ensures that provision 
of assurance is not duplicated. 

 
Significance 
Managers assess how significant the auditable area is in terms of 
the achievement of corporate or service objectives and priorities. 

 
Timings 
Managers identify when an audit should be undertaken to add most 
value. 

 
b) Proposed plans are based on the information obtained from the 

planning meetings. Details of audits that have not been included in 
the proposed draft plan as a result of resource limitations are 
reported to senior management and the audit committee. 

 
c) The proposed 2020/21 plans for all SIAS partner councils are then 

scrutinised and cross-partner audits highlighted. 
 
This approach ensures that our work gives assurance on what is 
important, focussing on those areas of highest risk, and supports the 
Council in achieving its objectives. 
 
The Planning Context 

 
2.4 The context within which local authorities provide their services 

remains challenging: 
 
• Latest forecasts show a cloudy outlook for the UK economy, 

reflecting increasing national and international uncertainties. Local 
authorities will need to be attuned to the impact on their local 
economies and any direct investments of their own. 

 

Page 45



Page 5 

• Service demands continues to rise, driven by complex needs, an 
ageing population and challenges in the healthcare system. With 
reduced financial support, local authorities will have to continue to 
become more innovative and commercial. 

 
• Digital transformation continues to offer opportunities along with 

significant risks. The innovative use of technology is helping to 
reduce costs, as well as be more efficient and transparent. However, 
factors such as security, privacy, ethical and regulatory compliance 
are a recognised concern. 

 
• Major national programmes in areas like business rates, public 

health and housing mean the overall financial environment remains 
relatively unstable.   

 
2.5 The resultant efficiency and transformation programme that councils 

are in the process of implementing and developing continues to 
profoundly alter each organisation’s nature. Such developments are 
accompanied by potentially significant governance, risk management 
and internal control change. 
  

2.6 The challenge of giving value in this context, means that Internal Audit 
needs to: 
 
• Meet its core responsibilities, which are to provide appropriate 

assurance to Members and senior management on the 
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control 
arrangements in delivering the achievement of Council objectives. 

 
• Identify and focus its effort on areas of significance and risk, 

assisting the organisation in managing change effectively, and 
ensuring that core controls remain effective. 

 
• Give assurance which covers the control environment in relation to 

new developments, using leading edge audit approaches such as 
use of technology to achieve ‘whole population testing’ and new 
insights over sampling or ‘continuous assurance’ where 
appropriate. 

 
• Retain flexibility in the audit plan and ensure the plan remains 

current and relevant as the financial year progresses. 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
 
2.7 The draft plan for 2020/21 is included at Appendix A and B and 

contains a high-level proposed outline scope for each audit; Appendix 
C details the agreed start months. The number of days purchased in 
2020/21 has reduced by 5 days, which for Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council equates to a reduction from 310 days (in 2019/20) to 305 days 
(in 2020/21).  

Page 46



Page 6 

 
2.8 The table below shows the estimated allocation of the total annual 

number of purchased audit days for the year and the corresponding 
allocated budgets for 2018/19, as also reported to Audit Committee on 
21 March 2018. This is for comparison and to demonstrate where the 
audit days saving has been achieved. 

 
 2020/21 

Days 
  % 2019/20 

Days 
% 

Key Financial Systems 70 23 62 20 
Corporate Audits 30 10 65 20.5 
Operational Audits 107 35 75 24 
Procurement / Contracts 10 3 18 6 
IT Audits 30 10 22 7 
Consultancy 0 0 5 2 
Joint Reviews and Shared 
Learning 5 1.5 5 2 

Strategic Support* 43 14 43 13.5 
Contingency and other 5 1.5 3 1 
Carry forward work 5 1.5 12 4 
     
Total allocated days 305 100% 310 100% 

 
* This covers supporting the Audit Committee, monitoring delivery of 
the audit plan, client liaison and planning for 2021/22. 

 
2.9 A list of reserve audits that will be considered as a substitute for an 

agreed planned review that is cancelled in-year is presented at 
Appendix B. 

 
2.10 Any significant audit plan changes agreed between Management and 

SIAS will be brought before this committee for approval through the 
usual plan update reporting cycle.   

 
2.11 Members will note the inclusion of a provision for the completion of 

projects that relate to 2019/20. The structure of Internal Audit’s 
programme of work is such that full completion of every aspect of the 
work in an annual plan is not always possible; especially given the high 
dependence on client officers during a period where there are 
competing draws on their time, e.g. year end closure procedures. 

   
2.12 The nature of assurance work is such that enough activity must have 

been completed in the financial year, for the Head of Assurance to give 
an overall opinion on the Authority’s internal control environment. In 
general, the tasks associated with the total completion of the plan, 
which includes the finalisation of all reports and negotiation of the 

Page 47



Page 7 

appropriate level of agreed mitigations, is not something that adversely 
affects delivery of the overall opinion. The impact of any outstanding 
work is monitored closely during the final quarter by SIAS in 
conjunction with the Section 151 Officer.   

 
3. Performance Management 
 
 Update Reporting 
 
3.1 SIAS is required to report its work to a Member Body so that the 

Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential 
component of corporate governance and gain assurance that its 
internal audit provision is fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is 
considered good practice that progress reports also include proposed 
amendments to the agreed annual audit plan. Progress against the 
agreed plan for 2020/21 and any proposed changes will be reported to 
this Committee four times in the 2020/21 civic year. 

   
3.2 SIAS will report on the implementation of agreed high priority 

recommendations as part of the update reporting process. 
 

Performance Indicators 
 
3.3  Annual performance indicators were approved at the SIAS Board 

meeting on the 7 September 2011 and are reviewed annually by the 
Board. Details of the targets set for 2020/21 are shown in the table 
below. Actual performance against target will be included in the update 
reports to this Committee.  

 
Performance Indicator Performance Target 

 
1. Planned Days  

percentage of actual billable 
days against planned 
chargeable days completed. 
 

 
95% 

 
2. Planned Projects 

percentage of actual completed 
projects to draft report stage 
against planned completed 
projects 
Note:  
To be based on the judgement 
of the SIAS management team 
and representing the best 
estimate as to a reasonable 
expectation of progress on the 
audit plan. 

 
95% 

Page 48



Page 8 

 
 

3. Client Satisfaction 
percentage of client 
satisfaction questionnaires 
returned at ‘satisfactory’ level. 
 

 
100% 

 
4. Number of High Priority 

Audit Recommendations 
agreed 
 

 
95% 

    
5. Annual Plan 

 
Presented to the March 
meeting of each Audit 
Committee. Or if there is no 
March meeting then presented 
to the first meeting of the new 
financial year 
 

  
6. Head of Assurance’s Annual 

Report 

 
Presented to the first meeting 
of each Audit Committee in the 
new financial year. 
 

Page 49



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 9 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days Start 
Quarter 

Financial Audits 
Business World 
(Financial 
System) 

An annual cyclical audit that will provide assurance over the key controls 
covering the following risk areas: 

a) System Access; 
b) Authorisations; 
c) Reconciliations; 
d) Supplier Accounts; 
e) Reporting. 

Audit Sponsor:  
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Financial Transactions 
Team Leader 

15 3 

Treasury 
Management 

An annual cyclical audit that will provide assurance over the key controls 
covering the following risk areas: 

a) Treasury Management Strategy; 
b) Investments and Borrowing; 
c) Counterparties; 
d) Reporting. 

Audit Sponsor:  
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Financial Transactions 
Team Leader 
 

8 3 

Payroll Given the change in system arrangements, the audit will seek to provide 
assurance over the following risk areas: 

a) Realisation of Benefits; 
b) System access; 
c) Starters, Leavers and Amendments; 
d) Expenses, Overtime and Additional Payments; 
e) Pay Run and Third-Party Payments 

Audit Sponsor:  
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Financial Transactions 
Team Leader 

12 3 

Revenues An annual cyclical audit that will provide assurance over the key controls 
covering the following risk areas: 

a) Discounts, Exemptions and Reliefs (mandatory and discretionary); 
b) Systems Access; 
c) Recovery and Collection of Arrears. 

Key Contact: 
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact:  
Client Support Services 
Manager 

15 3 

Benefits A full audit is scheduled with areas of coverage potentially including: 
a) Policies, procedures and set-up of standing data,   

Key Contact: 
Head of Resources 10 3 

P
age 50



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 10 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days Start 
Quarter 

b) Assessments and backdating,  
c) Payments, 
d) Recovery of Overpayments,  
e) Reconciliations,  
f) Performance Monitoring, and 
g) Security of Data. 

 
Key Contact:  
Client Support Services 
Manager 

Housing Rents To provide assurance that the following high-risk areas are sufficiently 
controlled: 

a) Annual rent setting is approved and completed in a timely manner,  
b) Rent arrears are actively pursued and written off where necessary, 
c) Rent arrears are effectively monitored and reported. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Housing 
Operations 
 
Key Contact:  
Income and Home 
Ownership Manager 
 

10 3 

Corporate Audits 
Housing 
Development 
Company 

To provide assurance over risks relating to the governance arrangements 
in place for the newly formed Housing Development Company. This will 
include the decision-making structures, board structures (including Non-
Executives) and the initial set-up of the company. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Corporate Director 
(Housing and 
Communities) 
 
Key Contact: 
Corporate Director 
(Housing and 
Communities) 
 

15 1 

Absence 
Management 

To provide assurance over the arrangements to manage absences across 
the Council. This may include the following areas: 

a) Policy; 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Administration and 
Law 
 
Key Contact: 

15 2 

P
age 51



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 11 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days Start 
Quarter 

b) Consistency of management; 

c) Reporting; 
d) Referrals to Occupational Health. 
 

HR Manager 

Operational Audits 
Independent 
Living Service 

To provide assurance that robust arrangements are in place for income 
collection and cash handling, maintenance programmes for community 
buses are sufficient and health and safety responsibilities are supported by 
evidence. In addition, where time allows, a service review will be 
undertaken including a review of the allocation process. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Housing 
Operations 
 
Key Contact: 
Head of Housing 
Operations 

12 1 

Housing Land 
Supply 

To provide assurance that the following risk is adequately controlled: 
The Council does not identify a five-year housing supply which cause their 
planning decisions powers to be revoked. This may result in unwanted 
development that is not in keeping with the Local Plan (once approved). 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Planning 
 
Key Contact: 
Planning Policy and 
Implementation Manager 

10 2 

Council 
Website 

The Council recently launched an updated Council website and created a 
new Council run news website, One Welwyn Hatfield. This audit has been 
included to provide assurance over the achievement of benefits from the 
project to upgrade the website. In addition, assurance will be provided 
over the risk management of the project and the progress of any actions 
resulting from the accessibility standards compliance review. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Policy and Cultural 
Services 
 
Key Contact: 
Policy and 
Communications Manager 

15 4 

Responsive 
Repairs 

To provide assurance that the arrangements are in place to ensure that 
repairs are authorised, are appropriate for the reported issue and provide 
value for money. In addition, contractor performance is monitored and 
reported, with any performance issues being resolved with the contractor. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Property Services 
 
Key Contact: 

10 1 

P
age 52



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 12 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days Start 
Quarter 

Commercial Manager 
Lone Worker 
Devices 

Following the introduction of a new Council-wide solution to monitor the 
safety of lone workers, this audit will provide assurance that the new 
system has been successfully implemented and that the benefits have 
been measured. The devices are consistently used, including assessment 
of alternative arrangements that may be in place.  

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Public Health and 
Protection 
 
Key Contact: 
Risk and Resilience 
Manager 

10 4 

Regulating 
Private 
Housing 

To provide assurance that adequate controls are present and operating 
effectively with respect to the risks relating to case management and issue 
resolution. In addition, the audit will include an assessment of the 
operating model to deliver the service and provide assurance over the 
adequacy of such arrangements. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Community and 
Housing Strategy 
 
Key Contact: 
Private Sector Housing 
Manager 

10 1 

Food Safety To provide assurance that the inspection regime is operating effectively, 
risk assessments are completed, revisits are carried out where necessary 
and the authorisation given to officers is suitable in line with competency 
and job role. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Public Health and 
Protection 
 
Key Contact: 
Environmental Health 
Team Leader 

10 1 

Corporate 
Property Asset 
Management 

To provide assurance that sufficient controls exist and are operating 
effectively to allow the Council to meet its statutory obligations including 
record keeping and audit trails, monitoring and maintenance 
arrangements. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Service Manager (Building 
Services) 

10 2 

Right to Buy 
Pooling 

To provide assurance that there are robust procedures in place to ensure 
accurate forecasting. Controls surrounding the use of pooled income and 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Resources 10 2 

P
age 53



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 13 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days Start 
Quarter 

the production of quarterly information to S151 and Members are 
sufficiently robust. 

 
Key Contact: 
Senior Finance Business 
Partner 

Climate 
Change and 
Sustainability 

The audit will provide assurance on the Council’s climate change 
credentials. This may include: 

a) Climate change strategy and policy;  
b) Accuracy of reporting data against targets, stated aims and 

objectives; 
c) Energy management. 

 
An audit will also be carried out at other SIAS partners. The number of 
proposed days includes provision for consolidating the audit reports, 
thereby providing a wider level of assurance and sharing any learning 
across Hertfordshire. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Corporate Director 
(Resources, Environment 
and Cultural Services) and 
Corporate Director 
(Planning, Public Protection 
and Governance 
 
Key Contact: 
Head of Planning, Head of 
Environment and Head of 
Public Health and 
Protection 

8 2 

DFG Grant 
Certification 

To undertake sufficient audit work to enable the Head of Audit to certify the 
Disabled Facilities Capital Grant form, as required by the Department of 
Communities and Local Government. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Private Sector Housing 
Manager / Assistant 
Business Partner (Finance) 
 
 
 

2 2 

Contract / Procurement Audits 
Streetscene 
Contract 

To provide assurance that suitable contract management arrangements 
exist for the monitoring and management of the new Streetscene Contract, 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Environment 10 4 

P
age 54



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 14 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days Start 
Quarter 

Management including (but not limited to) issue resolution, access to management 
information, performance management, reporting arrangements and 
contractor liaison. 

 
Key Contact: 
Community and 
Environmental Services 
Manager 

IT Audits 
GDPR Through a health check approach, to provide assurance that 

arrangements are in place to allow all service areas to comply with GDPR. 
Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Client Support Services 
Manager 

6 1 

Disaster 
Recovery 

To provide assurance disaster recovery plans exist, are subject to regular 
testing and that lessons are learned from the tests undertaken. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Client Support Services 
Manager 

12 2 

IT Asset 
Management 

This audit seeks to provide assurance that the Council has maintained a 
full and complete asset register for IT equipment. The lifecycle of 
hardware, including servers, tablets and laptops/PC’s, has been 
considered in the IT Strategy and decisions making regarding replacement 
equipment is future focused. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Resources 
 
Key Contact: 
Client Support Services 
Manager 

12 4 

 

Title Description Days 

Shared Learning and Joint Reviews 
Shared Learning Production of SIAS Quarterly Shared Learning papers. 3 

P
age 55



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 

Page 15 

Joint Reviews Joint review topics to be agreed by the SIAS Board. 2 
Contingency  5 
Client Management – Strategic Support 
Head of Internal Opinion 
2019/20 

To prepare and agree the Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2018/19. 3 

Audit Committee To provide service linked with the preparation, agreement and presentation of Audit 
Committee reports. 8 

Client Meetings Meetings with the Council's Audit Champion, S151 Officer and other key officers and 
attendance at corporate groups. 6 

Liaison with External Audit Meetings with the Council's External Auditor, as required. 1 
Progress Monitoring Audit Plan monitoring and reporting. 8 
SIAS Development Included to reflect the Council's contribution to developing the partnership. 5 
2021/22 Audit Planning Provision of services to prepare, agree and report the 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan. 6 
Recommendations Follow 
Ups 

Quarterly follow up of recommendations in line with Audit Committees. 6 

Completion of outstanding 2019/20 projects 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



APPENDIX B – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 – RESERVE 
LIST 
 

Page 16 

Audit Title Proposed Scope / Risk Areas Officers Days 
Affordable Housing To provide assurance over the effectiveness and implementation of 

the Council’s affordable housing strategy and plans. 
Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Community and 
Housing Strategy 

10 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 

To provide assurance over the arrangements in place to manage 
exemptions from CIL, identification of liability and charging regimes 
are sufficient and accurate. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Planning 

10 

GLL Contract 
Management 

To provide assurance that the contract management activities in 
respect to GLL contract are complete and robust. Scope may include 
contractor relationships, performance monitoring, value for money or 
risk assessment. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Policy and Culture 

10 
 

Right to Buy To provide assurance that the Council have robust arrangements in 
place to comply with statutory timeframes and that effective policy and 
procedures are in place to manage the all aspect of right to buy. This 
audit will exclude assurance on right to buy pooling. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Housing Operations 

12 

Constitution Review To provide assurance that the outcomes from the constitution review 
have been actioned and implemented. 

Audit Sponsor: 
Head of Administration and 
Law 

10 

P
age 57



APPENDIX B – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 – RESERVE 
LIST 
 

Page 17 

 
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

Housing Development Company Absence Management Business World (Financial 
System) 

Council Website 

Independent Living Service Housing Land Supply Treasury Management Lone Worker Devices 

Responsive Repairs Right to Buy Pooling Payroll Streetscene Contract 
Management 

Food Safety Disaster Recovery Revenues IT Asset Management 

GDPR Corporate Property Asset 
Management 

Benefits Climate Change and 
Sustainability 

Regulating Private Housing DFG Grant Certification Housing Rents  

2019/20 Projects requiring 
completion 

   

 

P
age 58



 
 
 
 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Audit Committee Progress Report 

 
25 June 2020 

 
 
 

Recommendations 
 

Members are recommended to: 
• Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 

period to 12 June 2020 and 
• Note the implementation status of internal 

audit recommendations and the management 
response.

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



 
Page 2 

 

Contents 
 
1  Introduction and Background 

1.1  Purpose 
 1.2  Background 
 
2  Audit Plan Update 

2.1   Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings 
2.5   Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates 
2.6   Proposed Amendments to the 2020/21 Annual Audit 

 Plan 
2.7   High Priority Recommendations 
2.9  Medium Priority Recommendations 
2.11  Performance Management 

 
Appendices 
 
A   Progress against the 2020/21 Audit Plan 
 
B   2020/21 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 

Management 
 
C Implementation Status of Outstanding Medium 

Priority Recommendations as at 12 June 2020  
 
D Assurance and Finding Definitions 2020/21 
  

Page 60



 
Page 3 

 

1. Introduction and Background 
 
Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 This report details: 

 
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 

the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2020/21 as at 12 June 2020. 
b) Details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the approved 

2020/21 Audit Plan. 
c) Proposed amendments to the 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan report. 
d) The implementation status of previously agreed audit recommendations. 
e) An update on performance management information as at 12 June 2020. 
 

Background 
 

1.2 The 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 19 March 2020. 

 
1.3 The Audit Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the 

Annual Internal Audit Plan. This is the first report on the delivery of the 
2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. 

 
1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 

the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed Annual Audit Plan. 
 

2. Audit Plan Update 
 
 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings 
 
2.1 As at 12 June 2020, 12% of the 2020/21 Audit Plan days had been delivered 

(the calculation excludes contingency).   
 

2.2 The following 2019/20 final reports have been issued since 6 March 2020 
(cut-off date for the SIAS Update Report for 19 March 2020 Audit Committee): 
 

Audit Title Date of 
Issue 

Assurance 
Level 

Number of 
Recommendations 

Data Quality March 2020 Satisfactory 2 Medium. 

FOI March 2020 Good 2 Low 

Housing Rents March 2020 Satisfactory 3 Medium. 
2 Low 

Page 61



 
Page 4 

 

New Housing Maintenance 
Contract March 2020 Good  None 

Treasury Management March 2020 Satisfactory 1 Medium. 
2 Low 

Anti-Social Behaviour May 2020 Satisfactory 4 Medium 
 
2.3 We have not issued any final reports relating to the 2020/21 Audit Plan up to 

12 June 2020. Details of the current status of all audits in this year’s plan can 
be found in Appendix A of this report. 
 

2.4 Delivery of the 2020/21 Audit Plan was initially put on-hold in view of the re-
prioritisation of Council resources onto COVID-19 related activities. This has 
now been re-assessed and the Council has confirmed that a number of audits 
originally planned for quarter 1 can now commence. As a result, planning for 
six audits started in the second half of May and these are now underway.   
 
Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates 
 

2.5 To help the Committee assess progress in delivering the 2019/20 Audit Plan, 
Appendix B details agreed start dates. These dates were agreed with 
management and resources allocated accordingly. This schedule was 
designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit plan through the year. 
 
Proposed Amendments to Audit Plan 
 

2.6 As a result of the delayed start to the 2020/21 Audit Plan here and more 
generally across other SIAS partners, and the continuing redeployment of part 
of the SIAS team on COVID-19 related tasks on behalf of our partners into 
early June, it will not be possible to deliver the complete 2020/21 Audit Plan 
for Welwyn Hatfield or indeed our other partners. Discussions are underway 
with officers of the Council to assess the impact of COVID-19 on the plan and 
a status update will be brought to the next meeting of Audit Committee.  
 
High Priority Recommendations 
 

2.7 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management. This includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. It is Internal Audit’s responsibility to 
bring to Members’ attention the non-implementation of high priority 
recommendations. It is the responsibility of officers to implement the 
recommendations by the agreed date. 
 

2.8 There are no high priority recommendations that remain outstanding and we 
have not made any new high priority recommendations. 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 
Page 5 

 

Medium Priority Recommendations  
 

2.9 From 1 April 2019, SIAS has assumed responsibility for the co-ordination of 
following up the implementation status of Internal Audit recommendations 
from the Council’s Principal Governance Officer. Internal Audit has worked 
with Council management to develop a database of audit recommendations, 
regardless of the recommendation priority, to monitor the implementation 
status and progress to date. It has been agreed with Council management 
that SIAS will follow up all recommendations made since 1 April 2018. 
 

 
2.10 Appendix C details the implementation status of all ‘Medium’ priority 

recommendations that have not been fully implemented by the original target 
date, or for which no management response has been received at the date of 
this report. Appendix C has been abridged to fit this Progress Report, and the 
full database is maintained on a shared drive. This can be supplied by Council 
management on request, should it be required. A summary of the status of all 
‘Medium’ priority recommendations is set out above. 

 
Performance Management 
 

2.11 Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the SIAS 
Board on an annual basis. As at 12 June 2020, actual performance for 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council against the targets that can be monitored in 
year is set out in the table below: 
 

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target to 12 
June 2020 

Actual to  
12 June 2020 

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency) 
 
 

95% 
13% 

(40 / 300 
days) 

12% 
(37 / 300 days) 

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects 

95% 
0% 

(0 / 23 
projects) 

0% 
(0 / 23 projects) 

Medium priority recommendations 
 

Not implemented by due date 

Total number of 
recommendations 
followed up in this 
period 

Implemented Partially implemented 
– revised date agreed 

No update 
provided by 
action owner 

6 4 2 0 

% 
 

67% 33% 0% 

Page 63



 
Page 6 

 

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level  100% 100% 

100%  
(2 surveys 

returned from 
2019/20 audits 
not previously 

reported – both at 
satisfactory level) 

 
4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 95% 

N/A 
(None made) 

 
 

2.12 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  
Performance against these targets will be reported in the 2020/21 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report: 
 
5. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 
Audit Committee. If there is no March meeting, then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year. 
 
6. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit Committee’s 
first meeting of the civic year.

Page 64



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 

 
Page 7 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS 
C H M L 

Key Financial Systems 
Business World (Financial 
System)      15  0  

Housing Benefit      10  0  
Housing Rents      10  0  
Payroll      12  0  
Revenues       15  0  
Treasury Management      8  0  
Corporate Audits 
Absence Management      15 Yes 2 ToR Issued 
Housing Development 
Company      15 Yes 1 In Planning 

Operational Audits 
Building Services Asset 
Management      10  0  

Climate Change and 
Sustainability      8  0  

Council Website      15  0  
DFG Grant Certification      2  0  
Food Safety      10  0  
Housing Land Supply      10  0  
Independent Living Service      12 Yes 2 In Planning 
Lone Worker Devices      10  0  
Regulating Private Housing      10 Yes 8 In Fieldwork 

P
age 65



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 

 
Page 8 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS 
C H M L 

Responsive Repairs      10 Yes 2 ToR Issued 
Right to Buy Pooling      10  0  
Procurement / Contracts0 
Street Scene Contract 
Management      10  0  

IT Audits 
Disaster Recovery      12 Yes 5 In Fieldwork 
GDPR      6 Yes 1 ToR Issued 
IT Asset Management      12  0  
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews 
Joint Reviews      2  0  
Shared Learning      3  0  
Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity 
Contingency & Ad Hoc 
Activity      5  0  

Strategic Support 
Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion 2019/20      3 Yes 3 Complete 

Audit Committee      8 Yes 1.5 Through Year 
Client Meetings      6 Yes 1 Through Year 
Liaison with External Audit      1  0  
Progress Monitoring      8 Yes 1 Through Year 
SIAS Development      5 Yes 5 Complete 
2021/22 Audit Planning      6  0  

P
age 66



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 

 
Page 9 

 

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 
STATUS / 

COMMENTS 
C H M L 

Recommendations Follow Up      6 Yes 1.5 Through Year 
2019/20 Projects requiring completion 
Finalisation of Projects      5 Yes 3 As Required 
Total – Welwyn Hatfield 
B.C.   0 0 0 0 305  37  

 

P
age 67



APPENDIX B – 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT 
 

 
Page 10 

 

 
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

Housing Development Company 
In Planning 

Housing Land Supply Business World (Financial System) Council Website 

Independent Living Service 
In Planning 

Right to Buy Pooling Treasury Management Lone Worker Devices 

Responsive Repairs 
ToR Issued 

Corporate Property Asset 
Management Payroll Streetscene Contract Management 

GDPR 
ToR Issued 

DFG Grant Certification Revenues IT Asset Management 

Regulating Private Housing 
In Fieldwork 

 Benefits Climate Change and Sustainability 

Disaster Recovery 
(moved from quarter 2 as audit can start 
earlier than originally planned) 
In Fieldwork 
 

 Housing Rents 

Food Safety 
(moved from quarter 1 as food inspections 
currently suspended as a result of COVID-
19) 
 

Absence Management 
(moved from quarter 2 as audit can start 
earlier than originally planned) 
ToR Issued 
 

   

2019/20 Projects requiring 
completion 
In Progress 

   

P
age 68



APPENDIX C – STATUS OF OUTSTANDING MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMEDATIONS MADE SINCE 1 APRIL 2018 
 

 
Page 11 

 

 
Report Title Recommendation Management 

Response 
Original 
Target 
Date 

Respondi
ng Officer 
and Date 

Management Action 
Taken to Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Reason for 
Revised 
Target Date 

Status 

Fire Safety Monitoring of Actions 
identified through Fire 
Risk Assessments 
We recommend that the 
Council: 
- Upload all actions 
identified against each 
asset on Lifespan 
- Assign department 
action owners and due 
dates for completion 
- Ensure the status of 
actions identified from 
Fire Risk Assessments 
are monitored on a 
regular basis (to be 
determined by the 
Council) and reported 
as part of the KPI's to 
the Fire Safety 
Management Group and 
the Corporate 
Management Board. 
- The Fire Safety policy 
should be updated to 
reflect the proposed 
new monitoring 
procedures 

Agreed. 
Relevant data from 
Fire Risk 
Assessments will be 
shared with Heads of 
Service to ensure 
any failures are 
actioned. 
Additionally, KPI 
“Number of Actions 
Outstanding” will be 
broken down by 
priority, High, 
Medium, Low. 
The resource above 
will export from 
Lifespan, assess 
each action and 
allocate accordingly 

30/11/2018 Head of 
Property 
Services  
(February 
2020) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of 
Property 
Services  
(May 2020) 

The Council have 
uploaded all the actions 
identified within the 
latest FRAs on Lifespan. 
Property services 
actions are programmed 
for completion summer 
2020. Policy to be 
reviewed and updated 
March 2020. 
 
The Fire Safety policy is 
being reviewed by our 
Risk and Resilience 
Team, however, COVID 
has impacted on their 
timetable. I have been 
assured it is still 
scheduled to be 
reviewed. 
 
  

30/09/2020 Policy review is 
scheduled but 
now delayed due 
to the impact of 
COVID.  

Partially 
Implemented 

P
age 69



APPENDIX C – STATUS OF OUTSTANDING MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMEDATIONS MADE SINCE 1 APRIL 2018 
 

 
Page 12 

 

Report Title Recommendation Management 
Response 

Original 
Target 
Date 

Respondi
ng Officer 
and Date 

Management Action 
Taken to Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Reason for 
Revised 
Target Date 

Status 

General Data 
Protection 
Regulations 

Retention Schedule 
Review 
 
Management, in 
conjunction with Heads 
of Service, Information 
Asset Owners and 
Information Asset 
Administrators, should 
review and, where 
necessary, update the 
Council’s retention 
schedule so that it is line 
with the requirements of 
the GDPR. 
 
Furthermore, 
management should put 
arrangements in place 
to review the retention 
schedule on a routine 
basis, or following a 
significant change to the 
Council’s operations 

This action is agreed 
and the retention 
schedule is in the 
process of being 
reviewed and 
updated. 

31/12/2019 Head of 
Law and 
Admin 
(June 2020) 

A draft of the data 
retention guidelines had 
been created and 
circulated. A final review 
is underway to consider 
if there is scope to 
streamline the 
document, before it is 
sent onto the 
management team for 
formal approval 

31/07/2020 A final review is 
underway to 
consider if there 
is scope to 
streamline the 
document, 
before it is sent 
onto the 
management 
team for formal 
approval. This is 
to improve the 
management of 
the document in 
future. This 
revised target 
date has been 
pushed back to 
the end of July 
due to delays 
arising from staff 
turnover and 
resources being 
focussed on 
deploying 
remote 
committee 
meetings 
necessary to 
respond to 
COVID-19. 

Partially 
Implemented 

P
age 70



APPENDIX D – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2020/21 

 
Page 13 

 

 

Assurance Level Definition 

Good 
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key 
risks in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor 
reportable audit findings. 

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some 
audit findings related to the current arrangements.   

Limited 
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved. 

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention. 

    

Priority Level Definition 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Critical  
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a 
whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management 
action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

High  
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if 
untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently. 

Medium  
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put 
achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a 
timely manner. 

Low / Advisory  
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will 
enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as 
is practically possible. 

 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Alison Marston 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25 JUNE 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report presents the Draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the 
financial year 2019/20 (attached at Appendix A), which has been compiled in 
accordance with best practice set out in the CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance 
Framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Audit Committee:- 

(a) Considers and, once satisfied, approves the Draft Annual Governance 
Statement. 

(b) Authorises the Chief Executive, in conjunction with the Leader of the 
Council, to make any subsequent amendments to the Draft Annual 
Governance Statement necessitated by the comments made by the Audit 
Committee, 

(c) Recommends its certification by the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The CIPFA / SOLACE Guidance Framework emphasises that the AGS is a key 
corporate document. The most senior Member and the most senior officer have 
joint responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness.  

3.2 The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the governance 
framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this, they are likely 
to rely on many sources of assurance, e.g. Chief Officers, Members, Senior 
Managers and the Council’s External Auditors and other review agencies. 

3.3 As in previous years, the production of the AGS has been co-ordinated by the 
Governance Group, an officer group chaired by the Chief Executive in his 
capacity as Head of Paid Service. 

3.4 The Group’s membership also comprises: 

 Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning & Governance) 

 Executive Director (Resources, Environment & Cultural Services) – the 
Council’s S151 Officer 

 Executive Director ( Housing & Communities) 

 Head of Law & Administration – the Council’s  Monitoring Officer 

 Legal Services Manager (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

 Head of Resources (deputy Section 151 Officer) 

 the Principal Governance Officer  

Page 73

Agenda Item 11



- 2 - 

The Governance Group has considered the following sources of assurance:- 

Internal 

 existing policies and procedures 

 internal review activity (at both Member and officer level) 

 Directors’ and Heads of Service’s Management Assurance Statements 

 the work of the Shared Internal Audit Service, Performance 
Management, Procurement and Risk Management 

External 

 the work of the Council’s External Auditors 

3.5 Members are asked to note that there are no significant governance issues 
highlighted in the AGS for the financial year 2019/20 

3.6 Members are also asked to note that the AGS is subject to review by the 
Council’s External Auditors.  

 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Local authorities are required to prepare a governance statement in accordance 
with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015.  

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are none 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Failure to produce an annual governance statement would leave the Council 
open to criticism from the External Auditor.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are none. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are none. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are none. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are none. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are none. 

  

Page 74



- 3 - 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 A copy of the completed statement is placed on the council website. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority to engage 
with our communities. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1  An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 
 

 

 
 
 
Name of author Alison Marston  
Title Governance Services Manager 
Date 17 June 2020 
 
 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 
 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 

STATEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 

2019/20 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 77



APPENDIX A 

Contents 
 

1. Background ............................................................................................................... 1 

2. Scope of Responsibility .............................................................................................. 2 

3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework ............................................................... 3 

4. Review of Effectiveness ............................................................................................. 4 

Behaving with Integrity ................................................................................................................... 4 

Demonstrating a Strong Commitment to Ethical Values ................................................................ 4 

Respecting the Rule of Law ............................................................................................................. 5 

Openness ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

Engaging Comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders .......................................................... 6 

Engaging with Individual Citizens and Service Users Effectively..................................................... 6 

Defining Outcomes ......................................................................................................................... 6 

Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits ............................................................ 7 

Determining Courses of Action (Interventions) .............................................................................. 7 

Planning Interventions .................................................................................................................... 7 

Optimising the Achievement of Intended Outcomes ..................................................................... 7 

Developing the Council’s Capacity .................................................................................................. 8 

Developing the Capability of the Council’s Leadership and Other Individuals ............................... 8 

Managing Risks ............................................................................................................................... 8 

Managing Performance................................................................................................................... 9 

Robust Internal Control................................................................................................................... 9 

Managing Data .............................................................................................................................. 10 

Strong Public Financial Management ........................................................................................... 10 

Implementing Good Practice in Transparency .............................................................................. 11 

Implementing Good Practice in Reporting ................................................................................... 11 

Assurance and Effective Accountability ........................................................................................ 11 

5. Action Plan .............................................................................................................. 12 

6. Conclusion ............................................................................................................... 13 

7. Certification ............................................................................................................. 13 

 

 

Page 78



APPENDIX A 

Page 1   May 2020 

1. Background 
 

1.1. Towards the end of 2019/20, a global pandemic was declared in connection 
with the Covid-19 virus. Emergency responses were triggered and lockdown 
measures were introduced in the UK from 23 March. These affected all the 
services that the council delivers, however despite the challenges, the council 
was able to deploy rapid responses to ensure core services were delivered and 
that residents and businesses continued to be supported at this difficult time. 
The impact to our priorities and objectives, along with the actions taken are 
detailed in our report to Special council on 6 May. 

1.2. Covid-19 is already having a significant adverse effect on the economy, it is 
also affecting the services that the council delivers.  The council is faced with 
significant financial pressures in service areas such as homelessness and 
rough sleepers, at the same time there is a substantial reduction in income 
across our services. The estimated financial pressure amounts to £7m this year 
and the scale of the impact on the economy and public finances resulting from 
COVID-19 in the medium-to long-term is unknown. The details of our financial 
impact due to COVID-19 are shown in our 19 May Cabinet report. 

  

Page 79



APPENDIX A 

Page 2   May 2020 

2. Scope of Responsibility 
 

2.1. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. 

2.2. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. 

2.3. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

2.4. This Governance Statement explains how the Council has maintained sound 
governance during the financial year 2019/20. Regulation 6(1)(a) of the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 requires a local authority to 
conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control and to include a statement on this review with any published 
Statement of Accounts. Regulation 6(1)(b) requires that for a local authority in 
England that the statement is an annual governance statement. 

2.5. The Council also has a duty under Coronavirus Act 2020, The Local Authorities 
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and 
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 to 
make arrangements for council meetings to be held remotely, with provision for 
public and press access, the new Regulations will apply from 4 April 2020 to 7 
May 2021. 

 

  

Page 80



APPENDIX A 

Page 3   May 2020 

3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
3.1. The governance framework, which has been in place for the financial year 

2019/20 comprises the systems and processes as well as the culture and 
values, by which the Council is directed and controlled and through which it 
accounts to, engages with and leads the community. 

3.2. The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of 
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate and cost-effective services. 

3.3. The system of internal control is a significant part of this framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. However, it cannot eliminate all 
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and therefore can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

3.4. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks (both positive and negative) to the achievement 
of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 

3.5. The Council has an approved Local Code of Governance, which sets out its 
commitment to the principles of good governance. The code reflects the 
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework produced by 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance (CIPFA) and the Society of Local 
Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) in 2016.  

 

  

Page 81

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/local-code-of-governance


APPENDIX A 

Page 4   May 2020 

4. Review of Effectiveness 
 
4.1. The Council is required to prepare an annual governance statement in order to 

report publicly on the extent to which they comply with the Local Code of 
Governance. To achieve good governance, the Council should be able to 
demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the principles contained 
in the framework document. 

4.2. This review is informed by those Members and Officers, who have the 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment. The following paragraphs set out the Council’s assessment of the 
key elements of the governance framework for 2019/20.  

4.3. To enable the reader to access further information, links have been provided to 
key documents and topics relevant to the governance framework. These are 
provided to limit the need for lengthy descriptions and enable the reader to 
choose the documents they wish to view. 

4.4. Behaving with Integrity 

The Council’s political and managerial leadership take the lead in establishing a 
culture that encourages a climate of openness, support and respect. These 
senior managers and elected members ensure that the required policies are in 
place and are monitored. 

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made 
and the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to the local community. Some of these procedures 
are required by law, whilst others are adopted by the Council. A full review of 
the Council’s Constitution is underway, with a cross-party Member Group 
meeting throughout the year and working towards modernising the constitution 
whilst ensuring it remains a document that is fit for purpose. 

The Constitution sets out: 

 The Code of Conduct for Members 

 The Local Code of Guidance for Members and officers involved in 
planning matters 

 The Officers Code of Conduct 

 The Protocol on Member/Officer Relations 

A copy of the Constitution is given to each Member when they are first elected 
to the Council and is also available on the Council’s website, eTeam pages and 
at Council offices and libraries. 

4.5. Demonstrating a Strong Commitment to Ethical Values 

The Council has an agreed Code of Conduct for its Members that reflects the 
accepted principals of public life. All elected Members undertake that they will 
observe the Code of Conduct. Training on the Governance framework is 
provided to all Members of the Council. 

The Standards Committee are responsible for assessing and determining 
complaints against alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct. The role and 
function of the Committee, is amongst, other things, to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by Members and Co-Opted Members. The 

Page 82

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/12228/Constitution/pdf/Constitution.pdf?m=636855925319970000
http://www.welwyn.gov.uk/councillors/code-of-conduct/application
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=152


APPENDIX A 

Page 5   May 2020 

Monitoring Officer carries overall responsibility for legal compliance with the 
Code. 

The Standards Committee is responsible for arranging training and maintaining 
high standards for Members. The Chair of the Committee must ensure that all 
Members and co-opted voting members of the Council and the Town and 
Parish Council’s within the Borough have undergone standards training. 

Members are required to register their financial and other interests in 
accordance with the Localism Act 2011. Members are also required to declare 
these interests at each meeting where the matter under discussion has the 
potential to affect that interest. 

An employee Code of Conduct is contained in the Constitution that sets out the 
requirements of staff to abide by its contents. Each employee is required to 
comply with the Employee Code of Conduct with further guidance available 
from senior managers.  

4.6. Respecting the Rule of Law 

The Constitution contains four key governance documents: 

 Standing Orders 

 Scheme of Delegation 

 Financial Regulations  

 Contract Standing Orders 
These documents set the framework for the conduct of the business of the 
Council. 

Codes of Conduct set out the standards of behaviour that are expected of the 
Council’s Members and officers. Breaches of these rules are dealt with under 
the Members Code of Conduct complaints process or, in the case of officers, 
under the Council’s disciplinary procedures.  

The Whistleblowing Policy contains an external and internal whistleblowing 
number as well as a whistleblowing email address. The policy covers any 
malpractice or wrongdoing by any Member or employee of the Council as well 
as any contractor, supplier, consultant or partner of the Council in the course of 
their work for the Council. 

The Council has a Monitoring Officer as required by the Local Government & 
Housing Act 1989. The Constitution sets out how decisions are made to be 
legally admissible.  

4.7. Openness 

The Council is committed to openness and publishes information online in 
accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code and in accordance 
with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 also publishes a Publication Scheme.  

The majority of Committee reports are considered in open session with a 
minimal number of reports considered in closed session. Reports have a formal 
structure covering the relevant implications and are written in plain English with 
full explanations of the reason behind decisions. Procedures are in place to 
enable the recording and filming of meetings where appropriate. 

Minutes and agendas for all Council and Committee meetings are published 
online as well as all key strategies and policies. 

Page 83

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/councillors/info/register-of-interest
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/681/Whistleblowing-Policy/pdf/Whistleblowing_Policy_at_November_20174.pdf?m=636517146812700000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/access/published-information
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/8866/Publication-Scheme/pdf/Welwyn_Hatfield_Borough_Council_Publication_Scheme_-_December_2015.pdf?m=635852569601070000


APPENDIX A 

Page 6   May 2020 

All Cabinet decisions have been taken in public apart from exceptions such as 
personnel matters, commercially sensitive information or confidential legal 
advice. 

All Council meetings are open to the public. We welcome public participation in 
our meetings through the procedures and mechanisms provided.  

4.8. Engaging Comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders 

The Council oversees an annual community engagement programme which 
seeks the views of local residents and partner organisations on what is 
important in the Borough and how its services are perceived in the community. 

The Council’s Business Plan explains how the Council is engaging with its 
communities, structured and governed and how, together with the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy, all of its key resources are drawn together. 

Individual service areas will have their own arrangements for such engagement. 

4.9. Engaging with Individual Citizens and Service Users Effectively 

Community priorities and objectives are set out separately in a Community 
Strategy which is led by local community partners within the Welwyn Hatfield 
Alliance. Partners within the Welwyn Hatfield Alliance participate in one of five 
working groups covering the agreed community priorities of health, economy, 
climate change, growth and exclusion. 

Consultation is undertaken on specific areas of service, or on matters that may 
have a substantive effect on citizens. Dedicated web pages are set up for 
these.  

The Communications Team take the lead on ensuring that specific matters are 
adequately placed in the media and actively engage with the media on specific 
issues. 

Regular Members surgeries held throughout the Borough give citizens the 
opportunity to raise or discuss issues with ward Members. 

The Council co-ordinates an annual community engagement programme, which 
deploys a range of consultation methods at a local level. These include online 
surveys with a Borough Panel, public meetings, online budget consultation and 
liaison meetings with Town and Parish Council. 

Social media has also been used as a means of communication and feedback 
with residents and is steadily rising. Have your say on the Council website sets 
out further information on engaging with the Council in various ways.  

Our Digital Strategy, Think Digital, sets out how we will use modern and 
innovative digital methods to support service delivery, drive change and 
efficiency, and putting customers at the heart of everything we do. 

Our Customer First Strategy sets out how we intend to achieve our ambitions 
for delivering customer service excellence over the next three years and 
beyond. 

4.10. Defining Outcomes 

The Business Plan sets out the vision, values and priorities for 2018-21. The 
plan is the only strategic document which fully encompasses Council priorities 

Page 84

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=151
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/haveyoursay
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13799/Business-Plan-2018-21/pdf/Business_Plan_-_online_version_2.pdf?m=636783294884030000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/10234/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-2018-19-to-2020-21/pdf/Appendix_L_-_Medium_Term_Financial_Strategy_18.19_to_20.21.pdf?m=636619124349800000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/10234/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-2018-19-to-2020-21/pdf/Appendix_L_-_Medium_Term_Financial_Strategy_18.19_to_20.21.pdf?m=636619124349800000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/4338/Sustainable-Community-Strategy-2015/pdf/WH_SustainableCommunityStrategy2015_PROOF.pdf?m=635793083016930000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/4338/Sustainable-Community-Strategy-2015/pdf/WH_SustainableCommunityStrategy2015_PROOF.pdf?m=635793083016930000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/surgeries
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/haveyoursay
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/15645/Think-Digital/pdf/ThinkDigital.pdf?m=637085597124070000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/our-commitments/customers
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13799/Business-Plan-2018-21/pdf/Business_Plan_-_online_version_2.pdf?m=636783294884030000


APPENDIX A 

Page 7   May 2020 

for the Borough, and integrates with other key documents such as the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. 

4.11. Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits 

The Council recognises the long term impact of its decisions and adopts a 
medium term corporate plan and develops an annual budget which reflect the 
desired outcomes form the Council’s activities.  

Individual service areas develop their own service plans. These include 
consideration of the economic, social and environmental impact of their work in 
their service areas. 

The Council will also engage with other bodies on matters that will or may have 
a sustainable economic, social or environmental benefit to the Borough. This 
will include Hertfordshire County Council and East & North Hertfordshire Health 
Trust. 

The Council has in place a Local Strategic Partnership (The Alliance) whose 
remit includes ensuring sustainable economic, social and environmental 
improvements within the Borough. 

The Council’s Capital Programme is structured to achieve appropriate life 
spans and adaptability for future use and ensuring that resources are spent on 
optimising sustainable outcomes. 

4.12. Determining Courses of Action (Interventions) 

The Council has a Business Plan and service planning process. Service plans 
are coordinated to reflect the Council’s Business Plan for the year. 

Standard report templates require officers to consider legal, financial, risk 
management, security & terrorism, procurement, climate change and equality & 
diversity implications together with the links to corporate priorities. 

The Council has a Corporate Enforcement Policy in place outlining the steps 
the Council will use to secure compliance with the law while minimising the 
burden on individuals, business and the Council. 

Work plans were in place for the three scrutiny committees setting out business 
to be transacted which may assist with determining if interventions are 
necessary. 

Both the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer have powers of 
intervention. 

4.13. Planning Interventions 

Performance information, audit, risk and finance information is used to identify 
any areas of concern and plan required interventions.  

The Council has a planned and agreed annual cycle of meetings. These are 
flexible enough to enable Members to intervene by way of the call-in procedure 
or the calling of extraordinary meetings at any point in the year. 

4.14. Optimising the Achievement of Intended Outcomes 

Outcomes are monitored on a regular basis and are open to scrutiny. The 
Council’s Forward Plan and Publication of Decision List provided the Overview 

Page 85

https://welhat.gov.uk/media/10234/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-2018-19-to-2020-21/pdf/Appendix_L_-_Medium_Term_Financial_Strategy_18.19_to_20.21.pdf?m=636619124349800000
https://welhat.gov.uk/media/10234/Medium-Term-Financial-Strategy-2018-19-to-2020-21/pdf/Appendix_L_-_Medium_Term_Financial_Strategy_18.19_to_20.21.pdf?m=636619124349800000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/partnerships/wh-alliance
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/13799/Business-Plan-2018-21/pdf/Business_Plan_-_online_version_2.pdf?m=636783294884030000
https://welhat.gov.uk/media/9449/Corporate-enforcement-policy/pdf/Corporate_Enforcement_Policy.pdf?m=636842737144200000
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=151&RD=0&bcr=1
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/Cabinet-Decision-List


APPENDIX A 

Page 8   May 2020 

and Scrutiny Committees with proposed and recently made executive 
decisions, which are used in determining items for scrutiny.  

Performance management systems and individual appraisals set the objectives 
for the year for services and individual members of staff. The outcomes of these 
are regularly reviewed. 

The Councils Corporate Management Team (CMT) maintains strategic 
oversight of major issues affecting the Council. This includes the risk 
management system. 

4.15. Developing the Council’s Capacity 

The Head of Paid Service is responsible for the organisation of the Council’s 
staff. 

The Council has a performance management system within which each 
individual member of staff has clear direction for the year against which they 
are appraised. This consists of an end of year appraisal and regular reviews 
throughout the year. 

Benchmarking exercises are undertaken comparing performance and capacity 
with other authorities. 

Reviews of structures are regularly undertaken.  

The Council considers collaborative working with other authorities and bodies to 
increase capacity and improve efficiency. This includes SIAS, Waste 
Partnership, Emergency Planning and Hertfordshire Growth Board.  

4.16. Developing the Capability of the Council’s Leadership and Other 
Individuals 

Induction training for new members is provided shortly after their election to the 
Council. Induction training for new staff is also provided covering key aspects of 
governance.  

New Members of Hackney Carriage Committee, Licensing Committee, 
Licensing & Regulated Entertainment Committee and the Development 
Management Committee (Planning) and any substitutes have to attend 
mandatory training before they can attend committees. Refresher training is 
provided for all Committee Members and substitutes every six months. 

A robust recruitment process is in place aimed at seeking to place the right 
people in the right roles. The induction builds upon the individual’s knowledge 
of the organisation. Mandatory training on aspects such as health & safety, ICT 
and customer service are in place and professional staff have to undertake 
additional training requirements as set by their respective governing bodies. 

4.17. Managing Risks 

The Council has an approved Risk Management Strategy with risk 
management embedded within the processes and procedures of the Council. 
Risk registers are maintained at both strategic and operational levels. 

The Strategic and Service Risk Registers are maintained on a corporate risk 
management system and are reviewed once every quarter to ensure that they 

Page 86



APPENDIX A 

Page 9   May 2020 

adequately reflect the risks facing the Council and that effective mitigation is in 
place. 

The constitution clearly defines how decisions are taken and together with the 
Risk Management Strategy sets out the processes and controls to effectively 
manage risks. 

Risks have to be considered as part of the standard report template together 
with the implications involved. 

Strategic and operational risk information is included in performance clinics and 
resulting updates are reported to the Corporate Management Team, Cabinet 
and Audit Committee. 

4.18. Managing Performance 

Individual Cabinet Members meet at least monthly with Directors to consider 
the strategic direction, plans and progress of the Council. 

Corporate targets are individually owned by the Council’s services teams and 
are performance managed by the Executive Member, Director and Head of 
Service responsible for them. These are monitored and exception reported 
through quarterly meetings of an internal performance clinic attended by senior 
Members and officers. 

Chaired by the Leader, Deputy Leader and Chief Executive, the clinic meetings 
discuss and debate progress towards corporate targets. Remedial action is 
then identified against each target which falls behind schedule. This is then 
reported to the Cabinet following completion of the clinic meetings. 

Clinic meetings also enable discussions to take place on related service 
matters impacting on the Council on a quarterly basis. 

Performance clinics also include a summary of financial and budgetary 
performance data for both capital and revenue spending. In addition they also 
review complaints data for all services, local public relations and media activity 
involving the Council. 

4.19. Robust Internal Control 

The Audit Committee has terms of reference (in the Constitution) in accordance 
with recognised best practice and an agreed work plan. To effectively discharge 
these responsibilities, the Committee may require any officer to attend meetings 
of the Committee so it may receive explanations regarding any matter it is 
considering. The committee reviews reports containing mandatory assessment 
of financial, legal issues etc. 

Internal audit services have been provided by the Shared Internal Audit Service 
(SIAS). SIAS has undertaken a work programme approved by the Audit 
Committee and has compiled an annual report on the overall adequacy of the 
Council’s internal control environment and highlights any issues which are 
judged to be relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 

The Council has an Anti-fraud and Anti-Corruption policy in place that sets out 
its arrangements for dealing with fraud and corruption. 

The Council’s Senior Management (Corporate Management Team) comprises: 
• Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service) 

Page 87

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=240
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/about/governance/internal-audit
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/689/Anti-Fraud-and-Anti-Corruption-Strategy/pdf/Amended_Anti_Fraud_and_Corruption_Strategy_-_November_2018.pdf?m=636800545917930000


APPENDIX A 

Page 10   May 2020 

• Three Directors - one of whom is the Section 151 Officer (Chief Financial 
Officer) 

• The Monitoring Officer 

4.20. Managing Data 

Robust information management policy and procedures are in place and have 
recently been reviewed.  

Handling of data is subject to regulation by the Information Commissioners 
Office and the Local Government Ombudsman. Complaints against the Council 
have been minimal and most are concluded in the Council’s favour. 

The Council complies with the General Data Protection Regulation and The 
Data Protection Act 2018 requirements when handling our residents’, partners’ 
and customers’ data. All the personal and sensitive data we deal with is 
handled in accordance with the six data protection principles. There is a regular 
cycle of training for staff and policies and procedures have been drawn up to 
guide our teams on how they should be securely managing the data they 
handle. The Council is regularly audited to ensure compliance with the 
aforementioned legislation and has received satisfactory assurance following a 
recent audit. 

Following the 2018 inspection of the Council’s RIPA policy and procedures the 
council has rolled out a new specific training course which focuses on RIPA in 
the online space. This course is mandatory for all staff with access to the 
internet at work and fulfils a recommendation made by the Investigatory Powers 
Commissioners Office after that inspection. 

The Council’s Data Quality Statement outlines our responsibilities and 
commitments to providing reliable and relevant data. The Council maintains its 
own performance indicators using them to measure how well we are performing 
and improving our services over time. Key performance indicators are reported 
to quarterly Performance Clinics held internally and led by the Leader and Chief 
Executive. An exception report detailing remedial actions needed is reported on 
to the Cabinet. These are also reported to our Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees on a quarterly basis for their information, oversight and review. 

4.21. Strong Public Financial Management 

The Council has a robust budget setting process with the budget and medium 
term financial strategy agreed annually by the Council. Regular budget update 
reports are provided to the relevant committees. 

A Treasury Management & Annual Investment Strategy is updated annually 
and approved by Full Council. 

All Council expenditure is governed by Financial Regulations contained in the 
Constitution and sets out the rules and procedures for managing budgets and 
assuring appropriate stewardship of funds.  

The Council’s External auditors are required to produce an Annual Audit letter 
which is presented to the Audit Committee which comprises two main elements: 

• The audit of the Council’s financial statements 
• An assessment of the Council’s arrangements to achieve value for 

money in its use of resources 

Page 88

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/1315/Data-Quality-Statement/pdf/Data_Quality_Statement.pdf?m=636918694344830000


APPENDIX A 

Page 11   May 2020 

4.22. Implementing Good Practice in Transparency 

The Council complies with the Local Government Transparency Code and 
publishes information online including other information frequently requested by 
customers. 

Meetings of the Council, Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel, Development 
Management Committee and Local Plan examinations are webcast live and are 
subsequently available for viewing on the council website. Additionally, these 
meetings can be filmed, audio-recorded, photographed or reported 
electronically by anyone in attendance through the use of social media. This 
does not apply to sessions in private.  It should be noted that due to the current 
COVID-19 situation, all of the council’s public committee meetings are being 
held virtually and broadcast live.    

All reports are published on the Council’s website under the appropriate 
Committee. Reports are standardised and are written in a fair, balanced and 
understandable style. 

4.23. Implementing Good Practice in Reporting 

Comprehensive procedures for the making of decisions are in place and 
contained in the Constitution. 

All reports require the completion of a standard template to cover all risk areas. 

Agendas, reports and committees are published on the website except that 
which is exempt from publication. Exempt information is kept to a minimum. 

4.24. Assurance and Effective Accountability 

The Constitution sets out the executive arrangements and the roles and 
responsibilities of lead Members, the Cabinet and other Council members. 

There were three Overview & Scrutiny Committees whose remit was to 
scrutinise executive decision making, whether through the call-in of decisions 
before they are implemented or through the post-implementation scrutiny of 
decisions. Assurance is obtained by regular reviews of decisions made. 

Roles of Chief Executive and senior officers, including the Chief Financial 
Officer (Section 151 Officer) and the Monitoring Officer are described in the 
Constitution. 

The Corporate Management Team (comprising the Chief Executive, the three 
Directors and the Monitoring Officer) are aware of financial and other 
procedures and controls outlined in the Constitution.  

During 2019/20, the council carried out a comprehensive review of the 
Constitution, which led to a number of changes to improve our governance 
process; the revised Constitution was subsequently approved at Special 
Council meeting on 6 May 2020.  

Each Director and all nine Heads of Service are required to sign a declaration 
of compliance, in the form of a Management Assurance Statement, at the end 
of each year. 

The work of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) assists the statutory 
officers in discharging their duties effectively. As part of this an annual report is 

Page 89

http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/about/governance/internal-audit


APPENDIX A 

Page 12   May 2020 

presented to the Audit Committee which includes an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 

The governance statement contains an opinion on the level of assurance that 
the Council’s governance arrangements can provide. 

5. Action Plan 
 
4.1. The Governance Group have considered the actions required to plan for and 

deal with any key areas identified for action over the next twelve months: 

Action Lead Officer 

Review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
taking into account the 2019/20 final outturn. 

(Corporate Director 
Resources, Environment 
and Cultural Services) 

Financial Resilience Recovery project to take into 
account CIPFA’s new Financial Management 
Code: this will also play a fundamental part of the 
2021/22 budget setting process. 

(Corporate Director 
Resources, Environment 
and Cultural Services) 

Further development of recruitment processes, 
using the new recruitment microsite as well as 
amendments to the application form and the level 
of detail provided to applicants. Promotion of 
vacancies on social media sites making it easier to 
attract and recruit suitable candidates. 

HR Manager 

Being prepared to address any impacts that may 
arise from changes in regulation, legislation 
powers and national policy.  

CMT 

Oversee the implementation of the changes to the 
Constitution with the use of new Cabinet Member 
decision notices and the new OSC system trialled 
for 12 months. Further review of the Constitutional 
chapters will continue with councillor input. 

Monitoring Officer 

Further development of the corporate 
modernisation programme and revised governance 
arrangements. The Modernisation Board is 
meeting every two weeks and significant work has 
been undertaken to start the modernisation 
reviews and also the Digital and Customer 
Services work programme to make our service 
delivery more efficient and effective. 

Chief Executive 

Whilst the Government has temporarily removed 
the legal requirement for local authorities to hold 
public meetings in person during the Coronavirus 
pandemic, the council is using new powers to hold 
public meetings virtually by using video or 
telephone conferencing technology. Meetings 

Monitoring Officer 

Page 90



APPENDIX A 

Page 13   May 2020 

remain accessible whilst ensuring that Councillors, 
staff and the wider public are able to follow 
Government advice. These meetings will be 
managed securely with data processed in a 
manner that ensures appropriate security of the 
personal or confidential data that the Council 
handles.  

6. Conclusion 
 
5.1. The Council’s governance arrangements are regarded as fit for purpose and 

are in accordance with the governance framework. 
 
5.2. The Governance Group have agreed that, following the review of the 

effectiveness of the Council’s Governance framework that there are no 
significant governance weaknesses that should be highlighted in this 
governance statement. 

 
 

7. Certification 
 
6.1. We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the 

effectiveness of the governance framework by the Audit Committee, the 
Standards Committee and the Governance Group and the plan to ensure 
continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

6.2. We propose over the coming financial year to take steps to further enhance our 
governance arrangements. We will continue to monitor our governance 
arrangements until the time of the next annual review.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………. ……….……………………… 
  

Rob Bridge  
Chief Executive  

 

Councillor Tony Kingsbury  
Leader of the Council

 
 
Dated:    
 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council
Audit progress update
Year ended 31 March 2020

16 June 2020

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 12



2

Private and Confidential 16 June 2020

Dear Committee Members

Audit planning report update

We previously presented EY 2019/20 Audit Plan to the March 2020 Committee meeting. This paper provides an update on the status of the
audit, considers the known and potential impacts of Covid-19 at this stage on the audit and provides an update on the PSAA scale fees for the
audit.

The ongoing disruption to daily life and the economy as a result of the Covid-19 virus would be expected to have a pervasive impact upon the
finances of the Council. Understandably, the priority for the Council to date has been to ensure the safety of staff and the delivery of business
critical activities. However, the financial statements will need to reflect the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s financial position and
performance. Due to the significant uncertainty about the duration and extent of disruption, we are using this update to highlight the wide range
of ways in which it has or could impact the financial statements.

Therefore we are attaching a short update to our plan to be read in conjunction with the original plans submitted. Collectively these set out our
updated view on how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Whilst our year end audit has now commenced, our risk assessment
procedures remain ongoing; we will inform the Audit Committee if there are any significant changes or revisions once we have completed these
procedures, and provide an update to the members of the Committee.

This update is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management. It is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Yours faithfully

Andrew Brittain

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Audit Committee
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
The Campus
Welwyn Garden City
Hertfordshire
AL8 6AE

P
age 94



3

Audit Status Update

Scope update
In our audit plan presented in March 2020 to the audit committee, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the audit of the
financial statements and Value for Money conclusion . We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions:

• Changes in materiality – In our Audit Committee Planning Report, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality
of £2.4m, with performance materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of £1.8m, and a threshold for reporting misstatements of £123k. We updated
our planning materiality assessment using the draft results and have also reconsidered our risk assessment. Based on our materiality measure of
gross expenditure on provision of services, we have updated our overall materiality assessment to £2.6m. This results in updated performance
materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of £1.9m.

• As a result of Covid-19, we have identified additional areas of audit focus. These are discussed on page 5 of this report.

Status of the audit

We have completed a substantial amount of our audit of the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. However, we adapted
our plans in light of the impact of lockdown, and we are returning in August to complete a further audit visit.  Of course, until the following work is
complete, we are not able to conclude on our audit report:
• Testing to be completed on cash and investments
• Valuation of other land & buildings & investment properties - We are undertaking our work in relation to the valuation of PPE & IP. We have engaged

our EY Real Estates team to test a sample of assets.
• Going concern – We have requested documented consideration to support the going concern assertion
• Pension liabilities – We are scheduled to start work on pensions in August 2020, following receipt of the IAS 19 assurance letters from the auditors of

the Herts pension scheme
• Value for money - We are undertaking our work in relation to VFM
• Clearance of all queries on our audit query log
• Review of the final version of the financial statements
• Completion of our final review processes
• Completion of subsequent events review
• Receipt of the signed management representation letter
• Completion of procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) regarding the Whole of Government Accounts submission

At the date of this report there are no unadjusted audit differences arising. However, we are yet to conclude our work on the key areas of estimation.

As a result of the pandemic, MHCLG have changed the financial reporting dates for local authorities. Councils are now required to publish draft
statements by the 31 August (from 31 May) and publish audited accounts (or state where they have not been audited) by 30 November (from 31 July).

P
age 95



4

Update on audit risks01 01

P
age 96



5

Update on audit risks

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from
19/20 audit plan Details

Valuation of property, including
investment properties

Significant Increase from
inherent risk to
significant risk

The Audit Plan includes PPE including investment properties valuations as an
area of audit focus. The Council’s valuation report issued by Avison & Young on
31 March 2020 includes material valuation uncertainty. The Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property
valuations, has issued guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact
of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there is a material
uncertainty. RICS has explained this is not a ‘disclaimer’ in the valuation: valuers
are continuing to apply their professional judgement, this is disclosing the
additional uncertainty attached to current valuations. This is particularly relevant
for Fair Value / Market Value based assets because of the paucity of market
information available at 31 March upon which to give those valuations.
We will need to discuss with management what disclosures they will be including
in the statements and the impact on the audit approach as currently outlined in
the audit plan. However, as the Council holds material property, including
investment properties, we are now recognising the valuation as a significant risk
and will be engaging our own experts to support audit procedures.

Going concern and covid-19
disclosures

Inherent risk New risk There is presumption that the Council will continue as a going concern. However,
the current and future uncertainty over government funding and other sources
of Council revenue as a result of Covid-19 emphasises the need for the Council to
undertake a detailed going concern assessment to support its assertion. From an
audit perspective, the auditor’s report going concern concept is a 12-month
outlook from the audit opinion date, rather than the balance sheet date. So, this
year, for example, we will need to see evidence of going concern up to and
including 12 months from the date of signing. This will need information relevant
to the 2021/22 financial year. We will be scrutinising the Council’s revised
financial plans and cashflow, liquidity forecasts, known outcomes, sensitivities,
mitigating actions and key assumptions. We will also discuss with management
the need to make specific disclosures in the 2019/20 statements in relation to
IAS 1 and IAS 10 covering both going concern, in particular any material
uncertainties, and events after the balance sheet date.

Impairment of receivables Inherent risk Increase to higher
level of inherent

risk

There may be increased number of businesses and residents unable to meet their
financial obligations. We will review significant judgements made by
management.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters identified as a result of Covid-19. It seeks to provide the Audit
Committee with an overview of any changes in risks identified in the current year.

P
age 97



6

Update on audit risks

Audit risks and areas of focus (continued)
Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from plan Details

Misstatements due to fraud or error Significant Change in focus In response to Covid-19 we will re-visit our fraud assessments as the incentive,
opportunity and rationalisation for possible fraudulent misreporting may have
changed.

Value for money Inherent risk Change in focus We will consider impact on your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy
resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third
parties. In our Audit Planning Report we identified no significant risks.

• Revenue recognition - there may be an impact on income collection (Council and Business rates) if businesses and residents are unable to work and
earn income due to the lockdown and restriction of movement due to Covid-19.

• Pensions – volatility in the financial markets is likely to have a significant impact on pension assets, and therefore net liabilities.

• Holiday and sickness pay – the change in working patterns may result in year-end staff pay accruals which are noticeably different to prior years.
• Annual Governance Statement – the widespread use of home working is likely to have changed the way internal controls operate. The Annual

Governance Statement will need to capture how the control environment has changed during the period and what steps were taken to maintain a
robust control environment during the disruption. This will also need to be considered in the context of internal audit’s ability to issue their Head of
Internal Audit opinion for the year, depending on the ability to have completed the remainder of the internal audit programme.

• Remote working – Our audit documentation tool, Canvas, and the EY Client Portal enable us to undertake the majority of our audit procedures by
working remotely. To date, the Council’s finance team have also been able to deal with audit queries remotely.

• Audit evidence – Whilst remote working is operating relatively effectively, there are likely to be some aspects of audit evidence where we will need to
work collaboratively with the finance team to ensure its appropriateness and sufficiency. For example, typically we would sit down with the finance
team to observe them running reports from the ledger which support balances in the statements. We will need to agree a practical and effective way
that we can gain the same assurance but working remotely. There may be additional challenges related to validating existence of tangible assets. Our
approach to address existence would include physical inspection of assets. However, in current circumstances, we would need to agree effective way
with management to gain same assurance. Dealing pragmatically with these challenges may increase the duration of the year end audit.

Other areas of audit focus as a result of Covid-19

Impact on audit delivery

P
age 98



7

Update on audit fees02 01

P
age 99



8

Fees
Update on audit fees

Summary of impact

We outlined in our audit plan the basis on which the scale fees are set by PSAA.  We also outlined a combination of factors which mean that we do not believe the existing
scale fees provide a clear link with both a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity. Based on these factors, and in light of requests from PSAA to provide further
detailed analysis we have estimated the impact on the Council as shown below.  Note that given the timing of this exercise it does not include the impact of any specific
requirements in relation to additional work in response to COVID-19.  We have shared the analysis below with officers, but as noted below these amounts are subject to
the approval of PSAA.

Rationale for fee variation Impact on WHBC

Scale fee 47,921

Changes in risk
profile

As a result of macro changes in the sector and the impact on the council in terms of the risks being faced, the
decisions being made and the financial reporting of those, this in turn increases audit risk, as outlined in our
audit plans, and we need to extend our procedures to address these.

9,500

Changes in
regulatory
environment

There has been a significant increase in the focus on areas of the financial statements especially where
judgemental estimates are made. This is to address regulatory expectations from FRC reviews on the extent of
audit procedures performed in areas such as the valuation of land and buildings and pension assets and
liabilities. Our required procedures now entail higher samples sizes, increased requirements for corroborative
evidence to support the assumptions and the increased use of specialists.
We have also seen wider changes in the regulatory environment which all firms have needed to respond
to. These include the various reviews, completed or ongoing, which all have a focus on audit quality and what is
expected of external auditors. This has increased compliance and quality assurance costs which are now
required for us to continue to provide services to the sector.

16,000

Changes in
expectations on
delivery

Our expectation of the degree of efficiency that would be achievable, for instance through greater automation,
has an impact on each audit.

1,500

Revised scale fee
(to be approved by
PSAA)

74,921

P
age 100



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Ka Ng/Richard Baker 
Executive Member: Cllr Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH JUNE 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

2019-20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The draft 2019/20 statement of accounts was signed off by the Corporate 
Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) as the Council’s S151 
Officer) on the 22nd May 2020.  The usual deadline for the statement of accounts 
sign off by the s151 Officer is 31 May.  However, for the 2019/20 statement of 
accounts this deadline has been extended to 31 August 2020.  Welwyn Hatfield 
is one of the few authorities in the country to have produced a Statement of 
Accounts in such short timescale, despite the challenges and additional work 
placed upon the finance team due to COVID-19. 

1.2 Owing to the unusual circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic, EY has 
confirmed that the audit will be concluded during the summer, primarily to audit 
the following areas: pension valuations, asset valuations and COVID-19 
impact/going concern assessment plus any minor outstanding issues from the 
main audit.  

1.3 The contents of the accounts are largely determined by statutory requirements 
and mandatory professional standards as set out within The Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting (The Code) and the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP) published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA).  There were no material changes to the accounting 
policies for the 2019/20 accounts.  

1.4 Overall the production of the accounts and final audit work has gone very well 
and based on the work completed by external audit so far, and at the time of 
writing the 2019/20 accounts are expected to receive an unqualified opinion with 
no material changes to the accounts, although it is noted that some of the high 
risk areas remain to be audited.  If there are any changes to the position, a verbal 
update will be provided by EY LLP at the meeting. 

1.5 It should also be noted that based on the work completed by external audit, the 
council is expected to receive a positive value for money conclusion, which 
means the council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2020. 

 

1.6 As there are still some outstanding areas to be audited by external audit, the 
purpose of this report is to seek delegated authority to agree the Accounts once 
the audit has been concluded. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 13



- 2 - 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Committee agree to grant delegated authority to Corporate Director 
(Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee to approve the Statement of Accounts for 
2019/20 and to sign the letter of representation.  It is also expected that an email 
notification will be sent to all Audit Committee members once the audit on the 
statement is concluded and that a copy of the EY audit report will also be shared 
with members electronically. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The 2019/20 Statement of Accounts is required to be signed off by the S151 
officer by 31st August 2020 and external audit is expected to finish the audit 
process by 30th November 2020.   Ordinarily, the Statement of Accounts is 
required to be signed off by the S151 officer by 31st May each year and external 
audit is expected to finish the audit process by 31st July.  The 2019/20 deadlines 
have been extended by The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) Amendments 
Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/404). 

3.2 The draft Statement of Accounts is shown on the following weblink:           
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - 2019-20. 

3.3 As there is some further audit work to be completed later in the summer, there 
could be further changes to the statement. 

Implications 

 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) has the 
powers within the Council’s financial procedure rules to amend and update the 
accounting policies; the role of the Audit Committee is to consider and approve 
the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 

4.2 There is a statutory requirement to publish the approved and audited Statement 
of Accounts by 30 November 2020. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report or 
recommendations. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There is a risk that the Statement of Accounts fails to meet regulatory and 
professional standards or timetables (likelihood low, impact high).  The potential 
impacts include qualification of the Statement of Accounts and/or balances on 
accounts may be uncertain.  Members should note that effective controls have 
been put in place (e.g. staff training) to minimise the likelihood of occurrence  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 None. 

Page 102

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/article/10176/2019-20


- 3 - 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 None. 

 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1  None. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1  None. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1  None. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1  None. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to a statutory requirement, under Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015, and amended by The Accounts and Audit 
(Coronavirus) Amendments Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/404). 

14 Equality and Diversity 

 

 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
 
Name of author Ka Ng and Richard Baker  
Title Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services) and Head of Resources 
Date 16 June 2020 
 
 
 
  

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - 2019/20 ASSURANCE OPINION
	Assurance opinion on Corporate Governance and Risk Management

	8 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT
	9 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) 2020/21 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN REPORT
	10 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - 2020/21 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	11 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	11.a ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

	12 AUDIT RESULTS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2020
	13 2019/20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

